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MINDPOOL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 
CIN: L72900PN2011PLC138607 

|Regd Add: 3rd & 4th, Sr No 133/1/316111 GK Mall Near Konkane Chowk, Pimple Saudagar, Pune MH 411027| 
| email:info@mindpooltech.com  | Website: www.mindpooltech.com | Ph: 9209401976 | 

|USA | PUNE | BANGALORE | HYDERABAD | NOIDA| 

To                                                                                                                                  Date: 06-09-2025 
 
The Manager- Listing Department 
National Stock Exchange India Limited 
SME platform 
‘Exchange Plaza’, C-1 Block G, 
Bandra Kurla complex, 
Bandra (E), Mumbai 400051. 
 
Ref: NSE Symbol: MINDPOOL                                                                                           ISIN: INE00RQ01019 
 

 
Subject: Submission of Notice of 15th Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for FY 2024-25 

 
Dear Sir, 
 
The 15th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of Mindpool Technologies Limited is scheduled to 
be conducted on Tuesday, September 30th, 2025 at 11.15 am (IST) at Hotel Parc Estique Nagar Rd, next to 
Phoenix Market City, Clover Park, Viman Nagar, Pune, Maharashtra 411014. In Compliance with Regulation 
34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, we are submitting 
herewith the Annual Report of the Company along with the Notice of 15th AGM for the Financial Year 2024-
25, sent/dispatched to the Shareholders through electronic mode. 
 
The Annual Report containing the Notice is also uploaded on the Company’s Website: 
https://mindpooltech.com/investors/ 
 
The Company is pleased to provide to its members the facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions 
proposed to be passed in the AGM by electronic means as detailed in the Notice of AGM. The date and time 
of remote e-voting facility are: 
 

Cut-off date for determining the eligibility to vote by 
electronic means or during the AGM 

Tuesday, 33rd September 2025 

Day, Date and Time of commencement of remote e-
voting 

Friday, 26th September 2025; 09:00 am (IST) 

Day, Date and Time of end of remote e-voting Monday, 29th September 2025; 05:00 pm (IST) 
Day, Date and Time of AGM Tuesday, 30th September 2025; 11:15 am (IST) 

 
Kindly take the same on your record. 
This is for your information and record. 
 
Thanks & Regards, 
        
For, Mindpool Technologies Limited 
 
 
 
 
Binny Porwal 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
A39413 
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To                                                                                                                                  Date: 06-09-2025 
 
The Manager- Listing Department 
National Stock Exchange India Limited 
SME platform 
‘Exchange Plaza’, C-1 Block G, 
Bandra Kurla complex, 
Bandra (E), Mumbai 400051. 
 
Ref: NSE Symbol: MINDPOOL                                                                                      ISIN: INE00RQ01019 
 

 
Subject: Proof of Dispatch of Annual Report and Notice of AGM 

 
Dear Sir,  
 
We, wish to inform you that the Company has completed dispatch of Annual Report for the Financial Year 
2024-25 to all the Shareholders (Members) of the Company as per BENPOS as of 29th August, 2025. We, do 
hereby certify that the Company has sent e-mail(s) on 06th September, 2025 containing the Annual Report 
of the Company for FY 2024-25 and Notice of AGM to Shareholders (Members) whose email id are 
registered with DP/RTA following the Compliance of MCA and SEBI circulars.  
 
This is for your information and record. 
 
Thanks & Regards, 
        
For, Mindpool Technologies Limited 
 
 
 
 
Binny Porwal 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
A39413 
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Dear Stakeholders,

I extend my sincere gratitude for your continued
trust and support, which remain the foundation of
our success. Despite global economic uncertainties
and shifting market dynamics, our resilience and
strategic focus have enabled us to deliver robust
growth and strengthen our position in the industry.

Over the past year, we achieved significant
milestones in revenue growth, advanced our
sustainability agenda, and upheld strong corporate
governance. These achievements are a testament to
the dedication of our employees and the confidence
placed in us by our customers and partners.

Looking ahead, we are committed to innovation,
customer-centric solutions, and expanding our
market presence. A key pillar of this strategy is our
growing focus on Global Capability Centers (GCCs)
in India. By enabling enterprises worldwide to
establish and scale their GCCs, we are helping them
drive digital transformation, optimize costs, and tap
into India’s exceptional talent ecosystem.

Together with our stakeholders, we will continue
building on this momentum to create long-term
value and sustainable growth.

Best Wishes,

 FROM THE DESK OF 

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING 
DIRECTOR

Mr. Ritesh Sharma

Mr. Ritesh Sharma - Chairman & Managing 
Director 
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ABOUT
COMPANY

We are one of the leading technology consulting and digital solutions
provider delivering technology solutions & capabilities to our clients from
diverse industries across the world. We are experienced across a number
of industry verticals with specialization in Digital Transformation, Data &
Analytics, Cloud, and AI Solutions.

Mindpool, a listed company on NSE Emerge, has proven to be a trusted
technology partner in India & US by maintaining a high standard of
products/services and accredited with ISO 9001:2015 & ISO/IEC
27001:2013. We are rated high among our all clients, including Fortune
500 Clients & known for outstanding service delivery, sustained
relationships, consistent results and innovation.

Result Oriented Approach
We execute the right campaigns 

for the right customers at the right 
time across the right channels

Customer  Focused

We empower your sales and 
marketing teams with data insight 

to enable them to make more 
customer-focused decisions

Joined Indian Staffing Federation

We joined the Indian Staffing 
Federation, further strengthening 

our position as a trusted and 
leading staffing solutions provider. 

Microsoft Silver Partner
Empowering Organizations With 

Innovative Solutions

IAS Certified
Accredited by the International 

Accreditation Service (IAS) for its 
Information Security Management 

System (ISMS)

ISO Certified Great Place to
Work Certified
Aug 2025-2026

INDUSTRY RECOGNITION & ACCREDITATIONS
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OUR BUSINESS

APPROACH

Mindpool Technologies focus has been in helping businesses grow with out-of-the box
business solutions so as to create long-term value for our stakeholders - clients, candidates,
employees and shareholders.

Our efficient, effective & transparent governing infrastructure provides the framework for a
compliant and resilient growth strategy. Our knowledge driven expertise across sectors
combined with our operational excellence puts us in a favorable position to enhance customer
value.

OUR MISSION

Our Mission is to be a trusted technology partner, leveraging our diverse expertise, certified
professionals, and client-centric approach to deliver tailored solutions that enhance business
performance, and build long-term relationships.

We function as an organic extension of our client’s teams and work closely with them to 
provide collaborative and dedicated support. We understand what matters for your success 
and deliver accordingly.

In an ever- demanding business environment, we constantly strive to meet all the 
expectations of our clients. We adhere to industry best-practices and standardized processes 
that allow us to surpass our client’s expectations.

We treat all information shared by our clients with utmost safety and privacy. We respect the 
confidentiality of client’s data- giving utmost importance to business ethics. We build 
business relationships based on mutual trust.
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 CORPORATE INFORMATION –
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A leader With nearly two decades of extensive
experience in the IT Staffing & Consulting industry, he
oversees business operations and is actively involved in
strategy consulting, business planning, sales strategy
development, IT solutions, and service delivery for the
company.

He also serves as member of the Audit Committee,
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, and Nomination
& Remuneration Committee.

 Mr. Ritesh Sharma  Mrs. Poonam Sharma
Chairman & Managing Director

As a dedicated and experienced professional, Mrs.
Sharma has been instrumental in the development of
Mindpool into a renowned IT consulting, development,
and digital marketing organization. From the outset, she
has overseen the Human Resources Department and
Administrative Operations with unwavering passion and
continues to do so.

Additionally, she is a member of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee.

Whole-Time Director

With around 25 years of professional experience across IT Projects, HR, Facility
Administration including IT-Staffing and nearly 7 years of experience into Training &
Development, Mr. Karwe is a specialist in Business Administration and a Master Trainer
AML–KYC.

He has also been serving as the Chairman of Audit Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee and a member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee. Mr. Kaustubh Karwe

Independent Director

 Mr. Sunil Jain
Independent Director

 Mr. Shailendrasingh
Naiyyar

Independent Director

Having over 25 years of industry experience, Mr. Jain’s expertise in Product development
and Program Management has been vital for the Company in planning and development of
new areas and manners for expanding the services.

He has also been serving as the Chairman of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

He is an Accredited Trainer for EXIN® & PEOPLECERT® having a 24+ years of
expertise learning in leading Service Management. Mr. Naiyyar is a Visionary,
dynamic, outcome-oriented & collaborative leader who has worked in challenging
environments with diverse geographies, cultures & vendors for global enterprises.

 Mr. Uday Surpuriya
Chief Financial Officer

 Mrs. Binny Porwal
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
having over 10 years of experience in the field of
Accounts and Finance. He carries with himself a vast
experience in maintaining the Profit and Loss
Accounts for respective Business Units and has been
helping the organization in utilization, productivity,
and cost management, and in generating profits.

She is an Associate Member of the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India and a law graduate
from Gujarat University, Ahmedabad. She is having
professional Experience of around 8 years in
Statutory and Stock Exchange Compliance and
handles the secretarial, contracts, compliance, and
other legal matters of the Company. 6



BOARD  COMMITTEES

MembersChairmanCommitteeSr. No.

Sunil Jain
Ritesh Sharma

Shailendra Naiyyar
Kaustubh KarweAudit CommitteeA

Kaustubh Karwe
Poonam Sharma

Shailendra Naiyyar
Sunil Jain

Nomination And Remuneration 
Committee

B

Sunil Jain
Ritesh Sharma

Shailendra Naiyyar
Kaustubh Karwe

Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee

C

IMPORTANT  STAKEHOLDERS & CORPORATE DETAILS

M/s. R.B SHARMA & CO., Chartered Accountants

Pune (MH)
Statutory Auditor

M/s. KANJ & Co. LLP,Company Secretaries

Pune (MH)
Secretarial Auditor

Mr. Uday Surpuriya, PuneInternal Auditor

Federal Bank Limited

RBL Bank Limited
Bankers

BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road,
Andheri East, Mumbai – 400093

Contact: + 91-22-6263 8200

www.bigshareonline.com

email: investor@bigshareonline.com

Registrar & Share Transfer Agents

NSE EMERGE PLATFORM

(National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.)
Listed On

Email: investors@mindpooltech.comInvestor Relations

www.mindpooltech.comWebsite

L72900PN2011PLC138607CIN

3rd & 4th, Sr. No. 133/1/316111 GK Mall Near Konkane Chowk, Pimple Saudagar,
Pune Maharashtra 411027Registered Office

Tel: +91-9900038833; 9209401976

email: info@mindpooltech.com
Contact Details

www.mindpooltech.com
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Fun Fridays

Maharashtra Days

Birthday Celebration

Matching Dress Competition 

Awards and Music

Women’s Day Celebration

Outings & Fun

LIFE @ MINDPOOL

www.mindpooltech.com

Employee

Appreciation

Aw
ards and 

M
usic
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NOTICE OF THE 15TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

IT IS HEREBY BROUGHT TO YOUR NOTICE THAT THE
15TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF THE
MEMBERS OF MINDPOOL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(“THE COMPANY”) WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY,
30TH SEPTEMBER 2025 AT 11:15 AM AT HOTEL
PARC ESTIQUE NAGAR RD, NEXT TO PHOENIX
MARKET CITY, CLOVER PARK, VIMAN NAGAR, PUNE,
MAHARASHTRA 411014 TO TRANSACT THE
FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Adoption of Audited Standalone Financial
Statements:

To receive, consider & adopt the Audited Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company for Financial Year
ended March 31st, 2025 including the Balance Sheet,
Statement of Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow
Statement together with the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company including Balance Sheet,
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for
the Financial Year ended March 31st , 2025 along with
the Directors’ Report and the Auditor’s Report thereon be
and are hereby received, considered, approved and
adopted.”

2. Adoption of Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements:

To receive, consider & adopt the Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company for Financial Year
ended March 31st, 2025 including the Balance Sheet,
Statement of Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow
Statement together with the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company including Balance Sheet,
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for
the Financial Year ended March 31st, 2025 along with the
Directors’ Report and the Auditor’s Report thereon be
and are hereby received, considered, approved and
adopted.”

3. To reappoint Mrs. Poonam Ritesh Sharma
(DIN:03397469), who retires by rotation pursuant
to section 152(6) of the Companies Act 2013, at
this Annual General Meeting and being eligible,
offers herself for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules
made thereunder and the other applicable provisions
of law, including any statutory modification(s) or
reenactment thereof, for the time being in force (“Act”),
the consent be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint
Mrs. Poonam Ritesh Sharma (DIN:03397469), who
retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and
being eligible offers herself for re-appointment.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To approve the revision in Remuneration of Mr.
Ritesh Sharma (DIN 02676486) Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as Special
Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
178, 197 and 198 along with Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made
thereunder and the other applicable provisions of law,
including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment
thereof, for the time being in force (“Act”), and on
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, approval of the Members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded for payment of a
Remuneration of Rs. 52,00,000/ (Rupees Fifty Two
Lakhs Only) per annum (as detailed in the Explanatory
Statement annexed to the Notice and excluding the
reimbursement of expenses) to Mr. Ritesh Ramavtar
Sharma (DIN: 02676486) the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company over and above the limit
prescribed under Section 197 in accordance with the
provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013
with effect from 1st April 2025 for the remaining period
of his tenure.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors of the
Company be and is hereby authorized severally to do
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
considered necessary or desirable to give effect to this
resolution and matters incidental thereto.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

For, Mindpool Technologies Limited

Sd/-
Binny Porwal
Company Secretary 
A39413

Place: Pune
Date: 05/09/2025

www.mindpooltech.com
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1. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 36(3)
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors seeking
appointment/re-appointment at this Annual
General Meeting and the explanatory statement
pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013, setting out all material facts relating to the
Item Nos. 3 and 4 is also annexed with this notice.
These statements/ disclosures should be treated
as part of this Notice.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY/ PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. THE PROXY
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective
and valid, should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, duly completed and
signed, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting. A Proxy form
MGT -11 is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on
behalf of the companies, societies etc., must be
supported by an appropriate resolution/authority,
as applicable.

Members are requested to note that a person can
act as a proxy on behalf of Members not
exceeding 50 members provided shareholding of
those members in aggregate should not be more
than 10% of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights. In case a proxy is proposed
to be appointed by a Member holding more than
10% of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not
act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. Corporate members intending to send their
authorized representatives to attend the meeting
pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act,
2013 are requested to send to the Company a
certified copy of the Board resolution authorizing
their representatives to attend and vote on their
behalf at the meeting.

4. Members are requested to bring their attendance
slip along with copy of the report and accounts to
Annual General Meeting. Members attending the
meeting are requested to complete the enclosed
attendance slip and deliver the same at the
entrance of the meeting Venue.

5. Relevant documents referred to in the
accompanying Notice & Explanatory Statement
would be available for inspection by the members
at the Registered Office of the Company on all
working days, except Saturday / Sunday & Public
Holidays, between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. up to
the date of the Annual General Meeting.

6. Members are requested to notify immediately any
changes, if any, in their registered addresses at an
early date to the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent, quoting their folio numbers/client ID/ DP ID
in all correspondence, so as to enable the
Company to address any future communication at
their correct address.

7. MEMBERS DESIROUS OF SEEKING ANY
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY ARE
REQUESTED TO ADDRESS THEIR QUERIES IN
WRITING TO THE COMPANY AT LEAST SEVEN
DAYS PRIOR TO THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING SO THAT THE REQUESTED
INFORMATION CAN BE MADE AVAILABLE AT
THE TIME OF THE MEETING.

8. Members holding shares in physical forms are
requested to consider converting their holding to
dematerialized form to eliminate all risk associated
with physical shares and for ease in portfolio
management. Member can contact the Company
or the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent,
Bigshare Services Private Limited, for assistance in
this regard. Members are, therefore, requested to
dematerialize their shareholding to avoid
inconvenience.

9. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only
such joint holders who are higher in the order of
names will be entitled to vote.

10. Members holding shares under multiple folios in
identical order of names are requested to
consolidate their holdings into one folio.

11. Members can avail of the facility of nomination in
respect of shares held by them in physical form
pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Members desiring to avail
of this facility may send their nomination in the
prescribed Form No. SH-13 duly filled, to Bigshare
Services Private Limited (‘Bigshare’), Registrar and
Transfer Agent (‘R&T’) of the Company. Members
holding shares in electronic form may contact their
respective Depository Participants for availing this
facility.

12. All documents referred to in the accompanying
Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be
available for inspection at the venue of the Annual
General Meeting from 30 minutes prior to the
scheduled time and shall be available till 30
minutes after the conclusion of the meeting.
Members seeking to inspect such documents can
send an email to investors@mindpooltech.com/
cs@mindpooltech.com with subject line ‘Inspection
of AGM Documents’. This notice and the Annual
Report will also be available on the Company’s
website www.mindpooltech.com for download.

Notes:

www.mindpooltech.com
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13. In compliance with the Rule 11 of the
Companies (accounts) Rules, 2014 read with
SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 3, 2024,
Notice of the 15th AGM along with the Annual
Report 2024-25 is being sent only through
electronic mode to those Members whose email
addresses are registered with the Company/
Depositories. Members may note that the
Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 will also be
available on the Company’s website
www.mindpooltech.com , and the website of
the National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.nseindia.com and on the website of
Service Provider, https://evoting.nsdl.com/.

14. The members seeking Annual Report in physical
form may write a mail to cs@mindpooltech.com
mentioning their Name, DPIP/CLID/BOID/Folio
Number, Postal Address alongwith PIN Code
and Contact Number for requesting Hard Copy
of the Notice and Annual Report. The reports
shall be sent to the member within 5 working
days of receipt of the request.

15. A route map showing direction to reach the
venue of the 15th AGM is given at the end of this
notice as per the requirement of Secretarial
Standards -2 on General Meeting.

16. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended),
and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, the Company is providing
facility of remote e-voting to its Members
holding shares in physical or dematerialized
form, as on the cut-off date, being Tuesday,
23rd September, 2025, to exercise their right to
vote through electronic means from a place
other than the venue of the Meeting on any or
all of the businesses specified in the
accompanying Notice (the “Remote e-voting”).

17. The remote e-voting period begins on Friday,
September 26th, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on
Monday, September 29th, 2025 at 05:00 P.M.
The remote e-voting module shall be disabled

by NSDL for voting thereafter.

18. Only those shareholders of the Company who
are holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form and whose names appear
in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners,
as on the Cut-off Date i.e., September 23rd,
2025 shall be entitled to cast their vote at the
15th AGM. Any person who is not a member of
as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for
information purposes only.

19. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Sunil
Nanal, Designated Partner of KANJ & Co. LLP,
Practicing Company Secretary as a Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the voting process in a fair and
transparent manner.

20. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the
conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the
votes cast during the AGM, thereafter unblock
the votes cast through remote e-voting and
make, within two working days of the conclusion
of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report
of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any,
to the Chairman or a person authorised by him
in writing, who shall countersign the same.

21. The Results on above resolutions shall be
declared within two working days of the
conclusion of the AGM of the Company and the
resolutions will be deemed to be passed on the
AGM date subject to receipt of the requisite
number of votes in favour of the Resolutions.

22. The Results of voting declared along with
Scrutinizer’s Report(s) will be displayed on the
website of the Company
(www.mindpooltech.com) and on Service
Provider’s website (https://evoting.nsdl.com)
and the same shall also be simultaneously
communicated to the National Stock Exchange
of India Limited (NSE).

Notes:

www.mindpooltech.com
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I. General Information

1. Nature of industry: IT & Staffing

2. Date of commencement of commercial
operations: 21-02-2011

3. In case of new companies, the expected date of
commencement of activities as per project
approved by financial institutions appearing in
the prospectus: NA .

4. Financial performance based on given
indicators:

5. Foreign investments or collaborations, if any:
Mindpool Technologies Inc.

II. Other Information

1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits :
During the year under review your
company reported dip in revenue from
operations amounting to an amount of INR
2,656.42 Lakhs as compared to an amount
of INR 3,497.93 Lakhs earned in the
previous Financial Year. The Company has
marked a fall of 24 % in its turnover during
the FY 2024-25 as compared to a growth of
3.16 % made during the FY 2023-24.The
Company has recorded a Gross Profit (PBT)
of INR 6.84 lakhs compared to INR 24.69
lakhs earned in the previous financial year
and Profit after tax (PAT) of INR 8.06 Lakhs
as compared to a profit of INR 17.93 Lakhs
earned during the previous financial year.
The dip in the revenue is due to economic
slowdown in the industry globally.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for
improvement: Your Company has been
proactively exploring new business avenues in
the GCC (Gulf Cooperation Council) and other
regions, which continues to present strong
demand for IT staffing, digital transformation,
and allied services. Alongside, your Company is
consistently implementing cost optimization
measures to safeguard margins and enhance
operational efficiency. Focused initiatives,
including process automation, resource
utilization improvement, vendor rationalization,
and lean management practices, have been
undertaken to reduce overheads. These
measures not only strengthen the cost structure
but also allow the Company to reinvest savings
into revenue-generating activities and
innovation.

3. Expected increase in productivity and profits
in measurable terms: With the dual strategy of
expanding into the GCC market and other
opportunities and implementing cost
optimization initiatives, your Company expects a
tangible improvement in both productivity and
profitability. Entry into the GCC region is
projected to contribute an additional growth in
revenues over the next 2–3 financial years,
driven by increased demand for IT staffing and
digital services.

On the cost efficiency front, process
automation, vendor consolidation, and better
utilization of resources are anticipated to result
in reduction in operating costs. These initiatives
together are expected to enhance overall
productivity while improving profit margins.

Accordingly, your Company is confident that
the combined effect of growth opportunities in
the GCC and other sectors and systematic cost
optimization measures will significantly
strengthen the bottom line and deliver
sustainable value to shareholders.

Notes:

Additional information required to be given as per the provisions contained in Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013 are given hereunder: 

FY 2023-254
(Amt. in 000’0) 

FY 2024-25 
(Amt. in 000’0) 

Particulars

3,49,792.66 2,65,641.56 
Revenue

3,329.00 2,529.10 
Other 
Income 

3,50,652.70 2,67,487.15 
Expenses

1,792.55 806.22 

Net Profit 
/ (Loss) 

www.mindpooltech.com
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Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Login MethodType of shareholders

1. For OTP based login you can click
on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You
will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification
code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email
id/mobile number and click on login. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and
you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to
enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication,
you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click
on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period If you are not
registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or
click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless
voting experience.

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with NSDL.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

A. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode:

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

E-VOTING PROCESS

www.mindpooltech.com
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Login MethodType of shareholders

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through
their user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-
Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login
to Easi/Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi Tab and then use
your existing my easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as
per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option,
the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally,
there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’
website directly

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available
at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System
Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
demat Account Number and PAN from a link in www.cdslindia.com home
page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered
Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL
where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
CDSL

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name
or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Individual Shareholders (holding
securities in demat mode) login
through their depository
participants

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to
login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Helpdesk DetailsLogin Type

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request
at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 022 - 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request
at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 1800-21-09911

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
CDSL

www.mindpooltech.com
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B. Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown
on the screen. Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL e-services after using your log-
in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Your User ID is:
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL)

or Physical

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then

your user ID is IN300***12******.

a) For Members who hold shares in demat

account with NSDL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user

ID is 12**************

b) For Members who hold shares in demat

account with CDSL.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company.

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID

is 101456001***

c) For Members holding shares in Physical

Form.

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your
vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial
password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?
i. If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox.
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open
the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or
folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial
password’.

ii. If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

www.mindpooltech.com
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1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares
and whose voting cycle is in active status..

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:
a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or

CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your
registered address.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting
system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS:

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals,
HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature
of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to
sunil.nanal@kanjcs.com with a copy marked to
evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e.
other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload
their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority
Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution /
Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in
their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password

with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential. Login to the e-voting
website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful
attempts to key in the correct password. In such an
event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?”
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the
password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting
user manual for Shareholders available at the
download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on :
022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a
request to Mr. Rahul Rajbhar, Assistant Manager at
evoting@nsdl.co.in .

www.mindpooltech.com
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not
registered with the depositories for procuring user id
and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting
for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please
provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy
of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
investors@mindpooltech.com.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide
DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16-digit
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of
Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
investors@mindpooltech.com.

3. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities
in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login
method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for
e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode.

4. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a
request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned
documents.

5. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-
Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode are allowed to vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants. Shareholders are required to update their
mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat
account in order to access e-Voting facility.

www.mindpooltech.com
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Item No. 3: To reappoint Mrs. Poonam Ritesh Sharma
(DIN:03397469), who retires by rotation pursuant to
section 152(6) of the Companies Act 2013, at this
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers
herself for re-appointment.

Mrs. Poonam Ritesh Sharma (DIN:03397469), Non
Executive Director is also the Promoter of your Company.
She has been associated with the company since its
inception and was re-appointed as the Whole Time
Director w.e.f. 1st October 2022 thereafter her
designation was changed to Non Executive Director w.e.f.
01st October, 2024.

In pursuance of the provisions of Section 152 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. :Poonam R. Sharma retires
from the office of Directorship and being eligible,
applies for re-appointment as the Non-Executive
Director of the Company.

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel/ their
relatives are either directly or indirectly, financially or
otherwise concerned or interested in any manner
(except in the manner stated hereunder) in the
resolution set out in Item 3 of the Notice of 15th AGM.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution for the
Item 3 set out in the Notice of 15th AGM.

DETAILSPARTICULARSSR. NO.

Poonam Ritesh Sharma – (DIN: 03397469)Name of the Director and DIN1

Non-Executive DirectorDesignation2

15/04/1981Date of Birth3

B.Com & B.EDQualification4

21/02/2011Date of Original Appointment5

01/10/2024Date of Appointment as Non-Executive Director6

06No. of Board Meetings attended during the Year7

Poonam Sharma aged 44 years, is the Promoter and Non-
Executive Director of the Company. She holds a Bachelor’s
degree in commerce and has completed her B.ED (Bachelor
of Education) from Pt. Ravishankar Shukla University, Raipur.
She has been associated with the company since inception..

Experience and Expertise8

Mr. Ritesh Sharma, Chairman & Managing Director of the
Company is the husband of Mrs. Poonam Ritesh Sharma.
She is not related to any other Director or KMP of the
Company

Relationship between Directors, Manager and 
other Key Managerial
Personnel

9

Director of Mindpool Technologies INC, USADirectorship in other Companies10

15,05,000 Equity SharesNo. of Equity Shares held in the company11
Appointed as Non-Executive Director of the Company w.e.f
01st October, 2024 in Board meeting held on 26th September,
2024 for NIL remuneration.

Terms and conditions of reappointment
& Remuneration sought for12

Rs. 36,00,000/- Per annum till 30th September, 2024 [FY 

2024-25]
Details of remuneration last drawn13

Member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Chairmanship/Membership of Committees in
the Board of other Companies14

NIL
Nature, material terms, monetary value and
particulars of the contract or arrangement15

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON DIRECTOR BEING RE-APPOINTED [AS REQUIRED UNDER REGULATION 36(3) OF
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2015 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD ON GENERAL MEETINGS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF
COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA]:

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

www.mindpooltech.com
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Item No. 4: To approve the revision in Remuneration of
Mr. Ritesh Sharma (DIN 02676486) Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company, on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, at its meeting held on 5th September 2025,
approved the revision in remuneration of Mr. Ritesh
Sharma, (DIN 02676486), Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company, subject to approval of the
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Ritesh Sharma, (DIN 02676486) Chairman and
Managing Director equipped with more than 20 years of
experience in IT Staffing and Consulting industry, is the
Promoter and Managing Director of your Company. He
has been associated with your company since its
inception and was appointed as the Chairman &
Managing Director w.e.f. 1st October 2022 by the
members of the Company for a term of 5 years for a
Remuneration of Rs. 36,00,000 (Rupees Thirty Six Lakhs
Only).

As per the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the total managerial remuneration payable by
a public company to its directors, including managing
director, whole-time director, and manager, is subject to
prescribed limits. In the event of inadequacy or absence
of profits in any financial year, remuneration can only be
paid in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V to
the Companies Act, 2013.

Since the proposed remuneration of Mr. Ritesh Sharma,
(DIN 02676486) may exceed the limits prescribed under
Section 197 of the Act but is within the overall
permissible limits laid down under Schedule V, approval
of the members by way of a special resolution is
required.

Except Mr. Ritesh Sharma, Managing Director, and his
relatives, none of the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, or their relatives are concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution for the
Item 4 set out in the Notice of 15th AGM.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The main terms of the proposed remuneration payable to Mr. Ritesh Sharma, (DIN 02676486) 
are as under:

Amount (INR)ParticularsSr. No.

52,00,008Annual Gross RemunerationA

4,33,334Monthly Gross Remuneration (In-hand) (C/12)B

Amount Rs. Per AnnumAmount Rs. Per MonthCTC Components

18,00,000 1,50,000 Basic Salary & DA

Fixed CTC Components

9,00,000 75,000 Housing Rent Allowance

9,00,000 75,000 LTA 

13,63,488 1,13,624Special Allowance

49,63,488 4,13,624 (A) Gross Salary (Sum of 
above Fixed Components)

1,49,940 12,495 (B) Bonus (Paid Monthly)

Employer Contribution 86,580 7,215 Gratuity (Paid as per 
Gratuity Act)

2,36,520 19,710 (C) Employer Contribution 
Total in CTC

52,00,008 4,33,334 (A+C+D) Total Cost To 
Company

2,400 200 PT (Slab Wise)

2,400 200 (E) Total Employee 
Deduction

51,11,028 4,25,919 (A+B-E) Net Take Home

www.mindpooltech.com
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To,
The Members of
Mindpool Technologies Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 15th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company
along with the Audited Financial Statements and Boards’ Report for the Financial Year ended March 31st, 2025.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The details of the Company’s performance for the year under review along with the previous year’s figures are given 
hereunder:

BOARD’S REPORT

ConsolidatedStandaloneParticulars

For the FY ended

31.03.2025

For the FY ended

31.03.2024

For the FY ended

31.03.2025

For the FY ended

31.03.2024

3440.764437.312656.423497.93Income from operations

25.2933.2925.2933.29Other Income

3466.054470.602681.713531.22Total Revenue

3457.014444.312674.873506.53Less: Expenses

9.0426.296.8424.69Profit Before Tax

Less: Tax Expense

8.246.767.576.76Current Tax 

NILNILNILNILTax/ MAT adjustments for 

earlier years  

(8.79)(8.79)Deferred Tax

NILNILNILNILMAT credit

9.6019.538.0617.93Net Profit After Tax

2. STATEMENT OF COMPANY AFFAIRS & OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Overview:

Over the years, your company has established itself as a trusted and successful provider of IT solutions,
consistently meeting and exceeding client expectations in this dynamic and evolving industry. With deep
expertise and unwavering commitment, we have continued to serve as a reliable partner for businesses
seeking high-quality IT services.

In today’s competitive business environment, staffing agencies play a vital role in bridging the gap between
exceptional talent and suitable opportunities. As IT enterprises increasingly require skilled professionals for
both permanent and temporary positions, the importance of staffing agencies has grown substantially,
enabling organizations to quickly and effectively meet their workforce needs.

Despite this, the global staffing industry has faced considerable challenges over the past year. As a result, your
company’s profitability for the current year has declined compared to the previous year. This decline is
primarily due to the disproportionate impact of reduced revenue, coupled with our inability to lower costs
accordingly, as a significant portion of expenses are allocated to employee salaries.

Your Company recognizes that the current decline is only temporary and does not undermine the long-term
potential and benefits of our business. With promising opportunities from prospective clients on the horizon,
we anticipate an improvement in revenue and profitability in the near future.
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To address present challenges, we are proactively strengthening our position through strategic collaborations with
offshore development centers. By adopting robust risk management practices, we are not only mitigating current
obstacles but also enhancing our capacity to leverage global expertise and resources. This approach allows us to
access international talent pools while ensuring efficiency, cost optimization, and greater scalability.

Our commitment remains focused on delivering sustainable, value-driven solutions that fuel business growth and
deepen client relationships. By broadening our service offerings, we aim to provide holistic, future-ready solutions
that align with the evolving needs of modern enterprises.

Standalone Performance: During the year under review your company reported dip in revenue from operations
amounting to an amount of INR 2,656.42 Lakhs as compared to an amount of INR 3,497.93 Lakhs earned in the
previous Financial Year. The Company has marked a fall of 24 % in its turnover during the FY 2024-25 as compared
to a growth of 3.16 % made during the FY 2023-24.

The Company has recorded a Gross Profit (PBT) of INR 6.84 lakhs compared to INR 24.69 lakhs earned in the
previous financial year and Profit after tax (PAT) of INR 8.06 Lakhs as compared to a profit of INR 17.93 Lakhs earned
during the previous financial year.

The EPS for the FY 2024-25 is reported to be INR 0.19 as compared to INR 0.42 in FY 2023-24 , showing a fall of
54.76%.

Consolidated Performance: Considering the slowdown it the Global economy the Consolidated Revenue during 
the period under report aggregates to an amount of INR 3440.76 Lakhs as compared to an amount of INR 4437.31
Lakhs earned during the previous financial year resulting in a reduction of 22.46%, the Company has recorded a 
Profit of INR 9.60 Lakhs during the year under report as compared to profit of INR 19.53 Lakhs in the previous year 
2023-4 resulting in a fall of 50.84%.

The markets in USA have not been performing well, which has adversely affected the performance of the wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, i.e. Mindpool Technologies INC, USA, thereby resulting in pressure on
profitability during FY 2024-25. The decline in profits can be attributed to weak economic indicators in the US,
which created challenging market conditions impacting our business operations. Consequently, the cautious
outlook detailed above has had a negative impact on our overall performance.

Subsidiary Performance:

Mindpool Technologies Inc.- The wholly owned subsidiary of the Company generated a Revenue of USD 0.927
Million (INR. 784.35 Lakh) during the period under report as compared to an amount of USD 1.135 Million (INR.
959.56 Lakh) earned during the previous financial year resulting in a reduction of around 18 %. Also, the Company
has recorded Profit of USD 1,814.26 (INR 1.53 Lakhs) during the year under report as compared to loss of USD
1,936.02 (INR 1.64 Lakhs) in the previous year 2023-24 resulting in a fall of approx. 6.29%.

3. DIVIDEND

The Directors of your Company are of the view that as the Company is undergoing a period of growth, and we
require additional capital to further strengthen our operations and elevate the standard of services we provide and
hence the Board of Directors has decided to forego any dividend payments for the current financial year. Instead,
they have chosen to allocate the profits towards an expansion plan that will ensure long-term growth and success
for the company.

4. NATURE OF BUSINESS

Throughout the review period, your Company has maintained its focus on IT staffing, payroll processing,
recruitment services, web application development, and digital marketing. There has been a deliberate emphasis
on expanding digital marketing and web-based services to establish a sustainable business model for the future and
to progress towards achieving the Company’s long-term objectives. In the current year, the Company has also
added a strategic focus on the GCC region, aiming to tap into new opportunities and strengthen its presence in
international markets. The Company's operations and practices have otherwise remained consistent without any
significant alterations during this period.
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5. REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

Your Company has seen tough time during the FY 2024-25 in IT staffing industry. However, the Company has been
dedicated and determined to provide quality services to its existing and new clients leading to a balanced and
trustworthy client base. The Directors of your company have been able to establish a management system which is
efficient in the overall development of the Company, including its employees and other stakeholders. The Board is
keen at pacing with various strategies and factors which are key in reaching the desired objectives:

Offerings and Profitability: With a proven track record in staffing and IT consulting, our digital marketing offerings
have also shown success. This expansion allows us to provide comprehensive digital solutions to our customers.

Human Resource: Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its most important assets. Your Company
continuously invests in attraction, retention and development of talent on an ongoing basis. A number of programs
that provide focused people attention are currently underway. Your Company thrust is on the promotion of talent
internally through job rotation and job enlargement.

Sales: Post COVID things has started changing. Client started working on hybrid model and this is helping us to
meet them in person and build strong relationship. We also expand our sales team in digital business. As an
impact, greater emphasis is demanded for digital sales enablement, and to counter the same, we have upgraded
sales effectiveness in terms of tools, training and extended reach with new digital channels and solutions.

Performance Metrics: Due to the prevailing economic slowdown and market challenges, the profitability of your
Company has been impacted. However, the Company has continued its efforts to maintain operational efficiency
and ensure stability in performance. The Board has taken due care of all factors influencing the business, while also
keeping in view the needs and well-being of its employees

Marketing and Market Environment: The marketing landscape has also undergone key changes and digital
marketing has been overemphasized, although we have always been in the forefront of digital marketing space and
have included it as our core marketing strategy since our early years.

Impact Of Recession in USA: Due to recession hitting the western market, we have witnessed some decline in the
business in US which has negatively impacted the results of our subsidiary company. Nonetheless, the Company has
been taking all preventive measures in further getting good business from US and western world in the years to
come.

6. LISTING INFORMATION

The equity shares of your Company are listed on the following stock exchange(s) under the ISIN: 

The National Stock Exchange of IndiaStock Exchange

SME PlatformPlatform

MINDPOOLSymbol

INE00RQ01019ISIN

7. HOLDING COMPANY

Your Company does not have any holding company or entity. The shareholding of the Company is as detailed in
the Annual Report of the Company.

8. DETAILS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

As on 31st March 2025, your company has, i.e., Mindpool Technologies Inc. incorporated as per the laws of United
States of America. one wholly owned Subsidiary Company Following are the details of your Company’s holding
Structure in Mindpool Technologies INC:
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Mindpool Technologies Inc.ParticularsSr. 
No.

 Incorporation Date- May 12, 2011
 Country- Delaware, USA
 Registered Office-National Registered Agents Inc., 160 Greentree Drive

Suite 101, Dover, DE 19904 in the Country of Kent.
 Virtual Office - 3422 Old Capitol Trail, Suite # 1634, Wilmington, DE 19808-

6192.

Corporate Information:1

IT staffing and Project Consulting services.
Current Nature of 
Business: 2

1500 shares of common Stock with $0.01 Par Value per Share.Capital Structure of our 
Subsidiary: 3

18th May, 2018
Effective date of acquiring 
shares or date of 
remittance 

4

Wholly Owned Subsidiary

[1500 Shares of $ 0.01/- each equivalent to 100% of paid-up capital]

Shareholding as on 31st

March 2024: 5

Pursuant to the on-going divestment, your Company has disposed off holding in the equity capital of S A Tech Software
India Limited and w.e.f. from March 31st, 2025 the Company holds equity shares aggregating to 13.53% in the Share
Capital of former subsidiary. As a result of the same, S A Tech Software is neither a subsidiary nor an associate of your
Company.

The details of Divestment carried out in the capital of S A Tech Software India Limited is as follows:

Percentage Shareholding post

disposition

Date of DispositionNumber of Shares Disposed offSr.No

40.001-11-2021FY 2021-2247,000 Shares1.

30.3103-07-2022

FY 2022-23

42000 Shares2.

30.1104-09-2022872 Shares3.

24.9008-11-202222,360 Shares4.

20.5707-12-202218,614 Shares5.

19.5728-03-20234300 Shares6.

19.2916-10-2023FY 2023-24opt out of Right Issue7

13.53-FY 2024-25The company went for IPO8

Your Company does not have any Joint Venture Company or Entity.

9. COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR

In accordance with the consent granted by the shareholders in the 11th AGM of your Company, with the
approval of the Board of Directors, the Company has been carrying out the divestment process in S A Tech
Software India Limited. Considering the same, S A Tech Software India Limited ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Company in FY 2021-22 pursuant to divestment of 47000 shares and thereafter ceased to an Associate of
the Company in FY 2022-23 pursuant to divestment of further 83,846 shares. As on the date of the report, S A
Tech Software India Limited is neither a Subsidiary nor an Associate of the Company.

10. ACCOUNTS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company has one wholly owned Subsidiary Company as on March 31st 2025. The details regarding the
financial statements on standalone as well as on consolidated basis of the said subsidiary and associate have
been furnished and attached to this report as Annexure-I in Form AOC-1.
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11. RESERVES

During the period under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to the reserves.

12. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

As per the provisions of clause (l) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, no changes have
occurred between the end of the financial year, i.e., from 1st April 2025 and till the date of this report, which has
or may be affecting the financial position of the Company.

13. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of the Company comprises an optimum combination of executive and non-executive directors,
including Independent Directors. During the year under review, there has been no change in the composition of
the Board.

Based upon the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has confirmed that
they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and
that they are independent of the management.

Effective date of 
Appointment on BoardCategory and DesignationName of the Director

21st February, 2011Chairman & Managing DirectorMr. Ritesh Sharma
(DIN 02676486)

21st February, 2011Non-Executive DirectorMrs. Poonam Sharma
(DIN 03397469)

23rd September, 2019Independent DirectorMr. Kaustubh Karwe
(DIN 08553122)

15th February, 2021Independent DirectorMr. Sunil Jain
(DIN 08313434)

1st September, 2022Independent DirectorMr. Shailendrasingh Naiyyar
(DIN: 09723751)
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Changes in composition:

During the period under report, Mr. Sathish Kumar Ganesan was resigned as Chief Financial Officer with effect
from 10th November, 2024 and Mr. Uday Pramod Surpuriya was appointed as Chief Financial Officer with effect
from 11th November, 2024.

Retirement by Rotation:

Pursuant to Section 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 1/3rd of the Directors 
are liable to retire by rotation and if eligible offer themselves for re-appointment. In the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting, Mrs. Poonam Ritesh Sharma Director of the Company is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible 
offers herself for re-appointment.

Composition of Key Managerial Personnel:

In pursuance to provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the applicable rules and other
applicable :
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the designated Managerial Personnel and Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP) of the Company as on 31st March, 2025 are as follows
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Effective date of AppointmentDesignationName of the MP/ KMP

8th March, 2018Chairman and Managing DirectorMr. Ritesh Sharma
(DIN 02676486)

11th November, 2024Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Uday Pramod Surpuriya

2nd July, 2024Company Secretary & Compliance OfficerMrs. Binny Porwal

14. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

Six (6) meetings of the Board of Directors were conducted during the FY 2024-25 in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder on the following dates:

 28th May, 2024
 1st July, 2024
 24th August, 2024
 26th September, 2024
 9th November, 2024
 12th February, 2025

The intervening gap between two board meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 and as per Secretarial Standard-1.

The Directors Attendance in meetings of the Board were as follows:

No. of Board meetingName of DirectorSr. No.
AttendedEligible to Attend

66Ritesh Sharma1.

66Poonam Sharma2.

66Kaustubh Karwe3.

66Sunil Jain4.

66Shailendrasingh Naiyyar5. 

15. GENERAL MEETINGS:

During the year under review, your Company has conducted its 14th Annual General Meeting on 20th September,
2024 in Physical mode as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities Exchange
Board of India, respectively.

16. COMMITTEES OF BOARD

The Committees of the Board focus on certain specific areas and make informed decisions in line with the
delegated authority. The following statutory Committees constituted by the Board function according to their
respective roles and defined scope:

• Audit Committee of Directors
• Nomination and Remuneration Committee
• Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

Details of the composition, role of the Committee and number of meetings held for respective committees as on
31st March, 2025 is as follows:
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I. Audit Committee:

Role in CommitteeCategoryName of Director

ChairmanNon-Executive Independent DirectorMr. Kaustubh Karwe
(DIN 08553122)

MemberChairman and Managing DirectorMr. Ritesh Sharma
(DIN 02676486)

MemberNon-Executive Independent DirectorMr. Sunil Jain
(DIN 08313434)

MemberNon-Executive Independent DirectorMr. Shailendrasingh Naiyyar
(DIN: 09723751)

A. Number of Meetings:

Four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were conducted during the FY 2024-25 on the following dates:

 28th May, 2024
 24th August, 2024
 9th November, 2024
 12th February, 2025

B. The role of the audit committee includes the following:

Oversight of the listed entity’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company; 

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 

Reviewing, with the management, the Annual Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon before submission to
the Board for approval, with particular reference to: 

a) matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the Boards’ 
Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 
c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management; 
d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to Financial Statements; 
f) Disclosure of any related party transactions; 
g) Modified opinion(s) in the draft Audit Report; 
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1. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval;

2. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations
to the board to take up steps in this matter;

3. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
4. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related parties;
5. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
6. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary;
7. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
8. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal

control systems;
9. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit;
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10. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 

11. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 
matter to the board; 

12. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

13. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

14. To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; 
15. Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background, etc. of the candidate; 
16. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee
.
I. The audit committee mandatorily reviews the following information:

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;
2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by

management;
3. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
4. Internal Audit Reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and
5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor.
6. Statement of deviations: (a) half yearly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if

applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1). (b) Annual Statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

II. Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

Role in CommitteeCategoryName of Director

Chairman 
Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Sunil Jain
(DIN 08313434)

MemberNon-Executive Director
Mrs. Poonam Sharma
(DIN 03397469)

MemberNon-Executive Independent DirectorMr. Kaustubh Karwe
(DIN 08553122)

MemberNon-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Shailendrasingh Naiyyar
(DIN: 09723751)
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Three (3) Meetings of the Members of Nomination & Remuneration Committee was held on 1st July, 2024, 26th

September, 2024, 9th November, 2024.

The Company’s policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of
section 178 is as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and the Terms & Conditions of appointment of
Independent Directors as annexed herewith this report as Annexure-III. The said policies are also available on the
website of your Company at the web link: https://www.mindpooltech.com/investors.html.

III. Stakeholders Relationship committee:

Role in CommitteeCategoryName of Director

ChairmanNon-Executive Independent DirectorMr. Kaustubh Karwe
(DIN 08553122)

MemberChairman and Managing DirectorMr. Ritesh Sharma
(DIN 02676486)

MemberNon-Executive Independent DirectorMr. Sunil Jain
(DIN 08313434)

MemberNon-Executive Independent DirectorMr. Shailendrasingh Naiyyar
(DIN: 09723751)
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The Members of Stakeholder Relationships Committee conducted their meeting on 29th May, 2024.

The Stakeholder Relationships Committee oversees all matters pertaining to investors of your Company.
The terms of reference of the Investor Grievance Committee include the following:

1. Redressal of shareholders’/investors’ complaints;
2. Reviewing on a periodic basis the approval of transfer or transmission of shares, debentures or any other

securities made by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent;
3. Issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on split/consolidation/renewal;
4. Non-receipt of declared dividends, balance sheets of the Company; and
5. Carrying out any other function as prescribed under the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

The details of Investors complaints received and resolved during the Financial Year 2024-25 are
as under:

No. of Investors Complaints 
PENDING as on 31st March 2025

No. of Investors Complaints 
RESOLVED during the financial 

year 2024-25

No. of Investors Complaints 
RECEIVED during the financial year 

2024-25

NilNilNil

17. EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS, COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has set up formal mechanism to evaluate the performance of the
Board of Directors as well as that of its Committee and individual Directors, including Chairman of the Board, Key
Managerial Personnel/ Senior Management etc.

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees, and
individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations. The performance of the Board
was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors based on criteria such as the board
composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, etc. The performance
of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the Committee members based on
criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of Committee meetings, etc.

Pursuant to the provisions of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was conducted on
08th November 2024, to evaluate the performance of the Board of Directors at large, the Committees of the
Board and the performance of every individual Director, including the executive directors, chairman and the
independent directors. The Directors further evaluated the quality, quantity, and timeliness of flow of information
between the company management and the Board and whether there has been any unethical behavior, actual or
suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy.

18. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As per the provisions of Section 149 sub section 6 & 7 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013
and the rules thereunder, your Company has duly received the declaration of Independence from all the
Independent Directors during the financial year 2024-25 and that the said declarations were placed before the
Board.

The Board further ensures that all the Independent Directors of the Company were/are eligible to be appointed
as the Independent Directors as per the criteria laid down by Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Based upon the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has confirmed that
they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and
that they are independent of the management.

In terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, as amended, Independent Directors of the Company have included their names in the data bank of
Independent Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.
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19. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As per Regulation 15 read with Regulation 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the provisions of Corporate Governance Disclosure are not applicable to the Companies listed
on the SME platform. Hence your Company is not required to disclose information as covered under Para (C), (D)
and (E) of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

As per Para (F) of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the
Company is not required to have the de-mat suspense account neither unclaimed suspense account.

However, the Board of Directors and the management of the Company take all necessary steps to ensure that a
good corporate governance structure is maintained and followed by the Company. The Board is moving ahead
with an aim of maintaining a sustainable corporate environment which can keep a check and balance on the
governance of the Company.

20. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion & Analysis report for the year under review as stipulated under Regulation 34(2) (e) of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
is annexed as Annexure- IV hereto and forms part of this Report.

21. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

Disclosures of the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and other
details, required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, alongwith
the Remuneration paid to the Directors including the Managing Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company are given in Clause 22 forming part of the Directors Report.
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22. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5(1), 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company
is as follows:

i. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director and Chief Financial Officer during the Financial Year
2024-25, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the financial year 2024-25 and the comparison of remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP) against the performance of the Company are as follows:

Ratio of the 
remuneration to 
the median 
remuneration of 
the employees

% Increase/ 
(decrease) in 
F.Y. 2024-25

Remuneration 
during F.Y. 2023-
24

Remuneration 
during F.Y. 2024-
25

Name of Director / KMP

2.660%29,27,84429,27,844Ritesh Sharma Chairman & 
Managing Director (KMP)

1.3350%29,27,84414,63,920
Poonam Sharma
Whole- Time Director
(KMP)

1.0535.60%8,54,25011,58,390Sathish Kumar Ganesan -
CFO (KMP)

0.92--10,15,670Uday Surpuriya- CFO 
(KMP)

0.52--5,74,420
Binny Porwal
Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer (KMP)

--67,09,93871,40,244Total Remuneration
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* Median remuneration for the financial year was Rs. 11,00,004/- (Rupees Eleven Lakh Four Rupees Only)

i. There were 169 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company during the financial year 2024-25.
ii. Comparison of Remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel(s) against the performance of the Company:
iii. Change in the total remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during the year under report in

comparison to last year is as specified in the table above.
iv. The turnover of the Company has decreased by 31.68%.
v. The Particulars of the employees who are covered by the Provisions contained in Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are:
a. Employed throughout the year -- Nil
b. Employed for part of the year -- Nil

vi. It is affirmed that remuneration paid during the financial year 2024-25 is as per the Remuneration Policy of the
Company.

23. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor, and mitigate various risks to key business set
for the Company. As a part of Risk Management policy, the relevant parameters for protection of environment,
safety of operations and health of people at work are monitored regularly.

The Board does not foresee any risk which might threaten the existence of the Company. The web link for the
policy is as follows: https://www.mindpooltech.com/investors.html.
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24. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted or renewed any deposit from the public or members of the company within the
meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder.

25. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Brief DescriptionParticularsSr. No.

Your Company requires energy for its operations and the
Company is making all efforts to conserve energy by
monitoring energy costs and periodically reviews of the
consumption of energy.
During the year, the Company followed the hybrid working
policy and provided the option to all the employees to work
from office or remotely based on their preference, resulting
in reduction of energy consumption.
We also take appropriate steps to reduce the consumption
through efficiency in usage and timely maintenance /
installation / upgradation of energy saving devices. During
the period under report no new energy consumption
equipment was required to be installed.

The steps taken or impact on conservation of
energy

1

The steps taken by your Company for utilizing
alternate sources of energy

2

The capital investment on energy
conservation equipment.

3

30



www.mindpooltech.com

B. Technology Absorption, Adoption and Innovation:

Brief DescriptionParticulars
Sr. 

No.

Your Company uses latest technology and equipment’s into 

the business and is not engaged in any manufacturing 

activities.

The efforts made towards technology 

absorption
1

The benefits derived like product 

improvement, manufacturing activities, cost 

reduction, product development or import 

substitution

2

In case of imported technology (imported 

during the last three years reckoned from the 

beginning of the financial year)

a) The details of technology imported

b) The year of import

c) Whether technology been fully absorbed?

d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption 

has not taken place, and the reasons thereof

3

Your Company has not spent any amount towards research 

and developmental activities and has been active in 

harnessing and tapping the latest and the best technology 

in the industry.

The expenditure incurred on Research and 

development
4

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

F.Y. 2023-24F.Y. 2024-25ParticularsSr. No.

3,96,64,19812,981,250Foreign exchange earnings1

--Foreign exchange outgo2

26. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

As your Company does not attracts any of the three criteria specified as per the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, it is not mandated by law to make Corporate Social Responsibility expenditures equivalent
to two percent of the average net profits during the financial year. Irrespective of the fact of non-applicability,
your Company constantly strives to ensure strong corporate culture which emphasizes on integrating CSR values
with business objectives.

27. AUDITORS

A. Statutory Auditors:

The members have appointed M/s R B Sharma and Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 109971W)
in their 14th Annual General Meeting held on September 20th, 2024 for a period of five (5) consecutive years i.e.
till the conclusion of the 19th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in F.Y. 2029-30 and conduct
audit for the F.Y. 2028-29.
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B. Secretarial Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. Kanj & Co. LLP, Pune
to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year under review. The Secretarial Audit Report in form
MR-3 is provided as “Annexure-V”.

28. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has complied with all the provisions of Secretarial Standards on Board meeting and General
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government.

29. AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors’ Report is with un-modified opinion and self-explanatory and do not require any further
explanations or comments under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. There were no qualifications,
reservations, observations or adverse remarks made by the Statutory Auditors in their report.

There were following observations made by the Secretarial Auditors in their Report:

 As on 30th September 2024, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company does not
consist of Non-Executive Directors as its members and to that extent it has not complied with Section 178(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Reply: Due to misinterpretation of the requirements of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Company had constituted the Committee in good faith, however, inadvertently, the composition did
not fully align with the statutory requirement of having Non-Executive Directors as members. However,
post September 2024 the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is now duly constituted in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

 The Company has filed Annual Performance Report of its wholly owned subsidiary beyond the prescribed
time and to that extent it has not complied with Regulation 15 of the Foreign Exchange Management
(Transfer or Issue of Any Foreign Security) Regulations, 2000.

Reply: The original APR was duly submitted before 31st December, 2024, which was the prescribed due
date. However, pursuant to recent amendments in the guidelines, the Bank raised a query requiring
that the Financial Statements of the Subsidiary be audited. Accordingly, the audit of the Subsidiary
was carried out, and upon completion, the revised APR was resubmitted in compliance with the
updated requirements with Bank but since the Audit took time the APR was submitted beyond the
prescribed time i.e. 31st December 2024..

 The Company has disclosed the resignation of the Compliance Officer to the Stock Exchange but it has not
submitted to the stock exchange, the letter of resignation along with the detailed reasons for the resignation
of the Compliance Officer within seven days from the date that such resignation came into effect and to that
extent it has not complied with Regulation 30 read with Schedule III Part A Para A (7C) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Reply: The Board has taken note of the observation made by the Auditors and shall ensure that going ahead 
such disclosures are in compliance with Regulation 30 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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30. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the
Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and external consultants,
including the audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting by the Statutory Auditors and the reviews
performed by management and the relevant board committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of
the opinion that the Company’s Internal Financial Controls were adequate and effective during FY 2024-25.

As per the provisions of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), the Directors hereby state as
under: -

A. That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

B. That the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company as at 31st March, 2025 and of the profit/loss of the company for the
year ended 31st March, 2025.

C. That the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

D. That the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
E. That the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and

that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating efficiently; and
F. That system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws was in place and was

adequate and operating effectively.

31. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS

During the year under review, there were no orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which would
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

32. ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of the Company shall be uploaded on the
website of the Company within prescribed the time period after the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company and the Annual Returns for previous years are available on the website of the Company at:
https://www.mindpooltech.com/investors.

33. COST RECORDS APPLICABILITY

Maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable
to the business activities as carried out by the Company.

34. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

During the period under review the Company has given loans, guarantees or securities as per the provisions of
Section 185 and 186 as mentioned below.

The company has provided unsecured loan of Rs. 2,00,00,000/- to Opalforce Software India Limited.

The Company has not provided any loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates.

The balance outstanding at the balance sheet date is Rs. 2,00,00,000/- to Opalforce Software India
Limited.
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35. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts, arrangement, transaction entered by the Company during the financial year with the related
party were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. Financial Statements set out the
details of all related party transactions, as per accounting standards. Details of Related Party transactions as
per Section 188 have been specified in AOC-2 as Annexure – II

36. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has adequate internal financial control in implementation with reference to the Financial
Statement and is operating effectively. The Company has a well-placed, proper and adequate internal financial
control systems which ensures that all assets are safeguarded and protected and that the transactions are
authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The Company’s internal financial control system also comprises
due compliances with Company’s policies and Standard Operating Procedures (SOP’s), supplemented by
internal audits from Internal Auditors.

37. DISCLOSURES UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC) has been constituted to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

There were no cases reported during the FY 2024-25 under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

38. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER

The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism Policy, to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors and
employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company have been denied access to the Audit
Committee. The web link for the policy is as follows: https://www.mindpooltech.com/investors

39. COMPLIANCE UNDER THE MATERNITY BENE T ACT, 1961: The Company has complied with the
applicable provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. All eligible women employees have been
extended the benefits as prescribed under the Act. The Company remains committed to supporting
working mothers and promoting a gender-inclusive workplace

40. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE
TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THEBANKS OR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF:

It is not applicable to the Company during the year under review, as there exist no Loans/Borrowing
from any Bank, Financial Institution, etc. in any form or nature.

41. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY 
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE 
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 

There was no application made and proceeding initiated / pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016, by any Financial and/or Operational Creditors against your Company
during the year under review. As on the date of this report, there is no application or proceeding
pending against your Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
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By Order of the Board                                                                                    
For, Mindpool Technologies Limited

Sd/-

Ritesh Ramavtar Sharma
(Chairman & Managing Director)

(DIN: 02676486)

Date:05/09/2025
Place: Pune

www.mindpooltech.com

42. STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE AND 
EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED 
DURING THE YEAR.

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors appointed during the year possess the requisite
integrity, expertise, and rich experience, including proficiency, required for effectively discharging their
duties and responsibilities as Independent Directors of the Company.

43.        EVENT BASED DISCLOSURE

The Company has not issued any shares with differential voting rights or Sweat Equity shares or shares
under ESOP. The Company has not provided any money to its employees for purchase of its own
shares hence the company has nothing report in respect of Rule 4(4), Rule (13), Rule 12(9) and Rule 16
of the Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules, 2014.

44.         ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors express their deep gratitude to the members of the Company, for all support provided
to the Company from time to time and the trust and confidence reposed in the Board of Directors of
the Company. Your Directors also wish to thank the Bankers and Business Associates for all the help
and encouragement they extended to the Company.
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Form AOC-1

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES/

ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/ JOINT VENTURES

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary presented with amounts in INR)

For RB Sharma & Co.
(FRN: 109971W)

Sd/-

Annexure-II

AmountParticularsSr. No.

Mindpool Technologies Inc.Name of the Subsidiary1

18th May, 2018Date of Acquisition2

1st April 2024 to 31st March 2025
Reporting period for the subsidiary
concerned

2

1 USD= INR 85.5814
Reporting currency and Exchange Rate as

on the last date of relevant Financial Yearin case of 

foreign subsidiaries.

3

1283.72Share Capital4

5,30,32,990Reserves and Surplus5

5,31,89,539Total Assets6

0Total Liabilities7

0Investments8

7,84,34,628Turnover9

1,61,381Profit before Taxation10

0Provision for Taxation11

1,61,381Profit after Taxation12

NILProposed Dividend13

100 %% of shareholding14

Notes:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations. Nil
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. Nil

CA Abhinav Sharma
Partner
M. No.192590
UDIN: 25192590BMISYB5100

For Mindpool Technologies Limited

Sd/-

Ritesh Sharma
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 02676486

Date: 26/08/2025
Place: Sambhajinagar
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FORM NO. AOC.2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 

transactions under third proviso thereto below:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis

Annexure-II

DetailsParticularsS.No

NILName(s) of the related party and nature of relationshipa)

NILNature of contracts/arrangements/transactionsb)

NILDuration of the contracts/arrangements/transactionsc)

NILSalient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if anyd)

NILJustification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactionse)

NILDate of approval by the Boardf)

NILAmount paid as advances, if anyg)

NIL
Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to section 188

h)

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

DetailsParticularsSr. No.

Mindpool INCName(s) of the related party and nature of relationshipa)

Wholly owned SubsidiaryNature of Relationshipb)
SalesNature of contracts/arrangements/transactionsb)

1 yearDuration of the contracts/arrangements/transactionsc)

As per the Master Service Agreement.
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any:

d)

May 28th, 2024Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:e)
82,16,609Amount incurred during the year:f)

DetailsParticularsSr. No.

SA Tech Software India Pvt. Ltd.Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationshipa)

Related PartyNature of Relationshipb)
SalesNature of contracts/arrangements/transactionsb)

1 yearDuration of the contracts/arrangements/transactionsc)

As per the Master Service Agreement.
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any:

d)

May 28th, 2024Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:e)
2,15,39,679Amount incurred during the year:f)
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Notes: The Company has received the disclosure of interest from all the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP) of the Company in the form MBP-1 as prescribed under the provisions of Section 184 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with rules made there under along with the list of their relatives as per Clause (77) of Section 2 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the transactions / contract / arrangements have been entered by or with
any of the Directors / KMP of the Company and their relatives during the FY 2024-25 is mentioned above. Any
shareholder interested in obtaining the details of the same may write to the Company Secretary at the registered
office of the Company.

Annexure-II

By Order of the Board

For, Mindpool Technologies Limited

Sd/-

Ritesh Ramavtar Sharma

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN:02676486
Date: 05/09/2025
Place: Pune

DetailsParticularsSr. No.

S A Tech Software India limitedName(s) of the related party and nature of relationsa)

Related PartyNature of Relationshipb)

PurchaseNature of contracts/arrangements/transactionsb)

1 yearDuration of the contracts/arrangements/transactionsc)

As per the Master Service Agreement.
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions
including the value, if any:

d)

May 28th, 2024Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:e)

8,50,000Amount incurred during the year:f)

www.mindpooltech.com
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Annexure-III

1. INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as "Listing Regulations"), as amended from time to time, this
policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior Management and other
employees of the Company has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company
and approved by the Board of Directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company is designed to attract, motivate and retain manpower in a
competitive and international market. The policy reflects the Company's objectives for good corporate governance as
well as sustained long-term value creation for shareholders.

2. DEFINITIONS

a) “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

b) “Company” means “MINDPOOL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED”

c) “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

d) “Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means (i) Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the

Manager, (ii) Company Secretary, (iii) Whole-time Director, (iv) Chief Financial Officer and (v) Such other officer

as may be prescribed.

e) “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” shall mean a Committee of Board of Directors of the Company,

constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

f) “Policy or This Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”

g) “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him

and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

“Senior Management” mean personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team excluding 
Board of Directors. This would include all members of management one level below the executive directors, including 
all the functional heads.

3. Applicability

The Policy is applicable to:

 Directors (Executive and Non-Executive)

 Key Managerial Personnel

 Senior Management Personnel

 Other employees.

4. Constitution of Committee:

The Board of Directors of the Company (the Board) constituted the committee known as “Nomination and
Remuneration Committee” consisting of 4 directors out of which two third are independent directors. All the directors
of the committee are non-executive directors. The committee shall meet at least once a year.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY Annexure-III

5. OBJECTIVE

The Key Objectives of the policy would be:

1. To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management.

2. To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management.

6. GUIDING PRINCIPLES

The Policy ensures that:

1. The Committee while designing the remuneration package considers the level and composition of remuneration
to be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the person.

2. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks and

3. The Committee considers that a successful remuneration policy must ensure that a significant part of the
remuneration package is linked to the achievement of corporate performance targets.

7. TERMS OF REFERENCE OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

1. To formulate a criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director.

2. Formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

3. Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management in

accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy.

4. To carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance.

5. To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management.

6. To recommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior

Management.

7. Ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, relationship of remuneration to

performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks

8. To devise a policy on Board diversity.

9. Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in

accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

10. Recommend to the Board, remuneration including salary, perquisite and commission to be paid to the Company’s

Executive Directors on an annual basis or as may be permissible by laws applicable.

11. Recommend to the Board, the Sitting Fees payable for attending the meetings of the Board/Committee thereof,

and, any other benefits such as Commission, if any, payable to the Non- Executive Directors.

12. Setting the overall Remuneration Policy and other terms of employment of Directors, wherever required.

13. Removal should be strictly in terms of the applicable law/s and in compliance of principles of natural justice.

14. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory

notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.

15. To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.
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Annexure-III

8. APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT APPOINTMENT OF
DIRECTOR (INCLUDING INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS)

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for
appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person are
sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

As per the applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013, Rules made thereunder, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall have discretion to consider and fix any other criteria or norms for selection of the most suitable
candidate/s.

9. CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT OF KMP/SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Committee shall consider the following factors for identifying the person who are qualified to becoming
KMP and who can be appointed in senior management:

1. To possess the required qualifications, experience, skills & expertise to effectively discharge their duties and

responsibilities.

2. To practice and encourage professionalism and transparent working environment.

3. To build teams and carry the team members along for achieving the goals/objectives and corporate mission.

4. To adhere strictly to code of conduct

5. A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is considered

for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience

possessed by a person are sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

6. The Committee shall have discretion to consider and fix any other criteria or norms for selection of the most 

suitable candidate(s).

10. REMOVAL 

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder or under any
other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in
writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act,
rules and regulations.

1. POLICY RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KMP & SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

1. No director/KMP/ other employee is involved in deciding his or her own remuneration.

2. The trend prevalent in the similar industry, nature and size of business is kept in view and given due weight

age to arrive at a competitive quantum of remuneration.

3. Improved performance should be rewarded by increase in remuneration and suitable authority for value

addition in future.

4. Remuneration packages should strike a balance between fixed and incentive pay, where applicable,

reflecting short- and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the Company's working and goals.

5. Provisions of law with regard making payment of remuneration, as may be applicable, are complied.

6. Whenever, there is any deviation from the Policy, the justification /reasons should also be indicated /

disclosed adequately.

www.mindpooltech.com

41



NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
Annexure-III

12. FOLLOWING CRITERIA ARE ALSO TO BE CONSIDERED

Responsibilities and duties; Time & efforts devoted; Value addition; Profitability of the Company & growth of its
business; Analysing each and every position and skills for fixing the remuneration yardstick;

There should be consistent application of remuneration parameters across the organisation.

13. REVIEW

The policy shall be reviewed by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board, from time to time as may 
be necessary.

7. Executive remuneration is proposed by the Committee and subsequently approved by the Board of Directors.
Executive remuneration is evaluated annually against performance. In determining packages of remuneration, the
Committee may take the advice of the Chairman/ Managing Director of the Company.

8. The annual variable pay of senior managers is linked to the performance of the Company in general and their
individual performance for the relevant year measured against specific Key Result Areas, which are aligned to the
Company's objectives.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors are subject to the extent provisions of the (i)
applicable laws, including the Companies Act, 2013 (‘2013 Act’) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR”) and (ii) Articles of Association of the Company.

The broad terms and conditions of their appointments as Independent Directors of the Company are reproduced
hereunder:

APPOINTMENT

The appointment will be for the period mentioned against their respective names (“Term”). The Company may
disengage Independent Directors prior to completion of the Term subject to compliance of relevant provisions of
the 2013 Act.

As Independent Directors, they will not be liable to retire by rotation.  

Reappointment at the end of the Term shall be based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and subject to the approval of the Board and the shareholders. The reappointment
would be considered by the Board based on the outcome of the performance evaluation process and the directors
continuing to meet the independence criteria.

The directors may be requested to be a member / Chairman of any one or more Committees of the Board which
may be constituted from time to time.

ROLE, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. As members of the Board, they along with the other Directors will be collectively responsible for meeting the
objectives of the Board which include:

 Requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 
 Accountability under the Director’s Responsibility Statement. 

2. They shall abide by the ‘Code For Independent Directors’ as outlined in Schedule IV to section 149(8) of the
2013 Act, and duties of directors as provided in the 2013 Act (including Section 166).

3. They are particularly requested to provide guidance in their area of expertise.

www.mindpooltech.com
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TIME COMMITMENT 

They agree to devote such time as is prudent and necessary for the proper performance of their role, duties and
responsibilities as an Independent Director.

REMUNERATION 

As Independent Directors, they shall be paid sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and the Committees
of which they are members. The sitting fees for attending each meeting of the Board and its Committees would be as
determined by the Board from time to time.

In addition to the sitting fees, commission that may be determined by the Board may also be payable to them. In
determining the amount of this commission, the Board supported by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
may consider performance of the Company and their performance as evaluated by the Board.

Further, the Company may pay or reimburse to the Director such expenditure, as may have been incurred by them
while performing their role as an Independent Director of the Company. This could include reimbursement of
expenditure incurred by them for accommodation, travel and any out of pocket expenses for attending Board/
Committee meetings, General Meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with
shareholders/creditors/management, site visits, induction and training (organized by the Company for Directors) and
in obtaining, subject to the expense being reasonable, professional advice from independent advisors in the
furtherance of their duties as Independent Directors.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT 

The Company may conduct formal training program for its Independent Directors.

The Company may, as may be required, support Directors to continually update their skills and knowledge and
improve their familiarity with the company and its business. The Company will fund/arrange for training on all matters
which are common to the whole Board.

PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL / EVALUATION PROCESS 

As members of the Board, their performance as well as the performance of the entire Board and its Committees will
be evaluated annually. Evaluation of each director shall be done by all the other directors. The criteria for evaluation
shall be disclosed in the Company’s Annual Report. However, the actual evaluation process shall remain confidential
and shall be a constructive mechanism to improve the effectiveness of the Board / Committee.

DISCLOSURES, OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS AND BUSINESS INTERESTS 

During the Term, they agree to promptly notify the Company of any change in their directorships, and provide such
other disclosures and information as may be required under the applicable laws. They also agree that upon
becoming aware of any potential conflict of interest with their position as Independent Directors of the Company,
they shall promptly disclose the same to the Chairman and the Company Secretary.

During their Term, they agree to promptly provide a declaration under Section 149(7) of the 2013 Act, upon any
change in circumstances which may affect their status as an Independent Director.

CHANGES OF PERSONAL DETAILS

During the Term, they shall promptly intimate the Company Secretary and the Registrar of Companies in the
prescribed manner, of any change in address or other contact and personal details provided to the Company.

DISENGAGEMENT

They may resign from the directorship of the Company by giving a notice in writing to the Company stating the
reasons for resignation. The resignation shall take effect from the date on which the notice is received by the
Company or the date, if any, specified by them in the notice, whichever is later.

Their directorship on the Board of the Company shall cease in accordance with law. The Company may disengage
Independent Directors prior to completion of Term (subject to compliance of relevant provisions of the 2013 Act)
upon the director failing to meet the criteria for independence as envisaged in Section 149(6) of the 2013 Act.

www.mindpooltech.com

43



Annexure-IV

The management discussion and analysis present the industry overview, opportunities and threats, initiatives by the
Company, and the overall strategy of becoming a market-driven service provider with a diverse range of offerings. The
Company is very optimistic about capturing a substantial share of both global and domestic markets, even amidst the
challenges posed by liberalization and increased competition from well-established companies in India and abroad
.
 OUTLOOK:

During the fiscal year 2024-2025, your Company has continued to reach new milestones and solidify its reputation in
the IT staffing industry. In addition to serving our long-standing clients, we have successfully onboarded new clients in
both IT staffing and digital business sectors. The Directors have implemented a highly effective management system
that supports the overall growth of the Company, benefiting both employees and stakeholders.

Building on this foundation, we are also expanding into Global Capability Center (GCC) setup services, positioning
Mindpool Tech as a trusted partner for enterprises establishing their operations in India. With India emerging as a
global hub for technology innovation and business transformation, GCCs have become a strategic model for
organizations to optimize costs, drive innovation, and tap into a world-class talent pool. Our end-to-end GCC services —
from setup to operations — allow clients to establish scalable, innovation-driven centers that contribute directly to their
long-term growth strategies.

Our proven success in IT staffing and consulting has been complemented by a notable expansion into digital marketing
services, which has proven highly successful. This diversification has enabled us to offer comprehensive solutions to
clients. Despite a slowdown in the US and European markets, our Company has maintained strong performance
throughout the year. The Board has carefully considered all factors impacting performance, including the adjustments
required for remote and hybrid work environments, and sees GCCs as a key lever for sustainable global growth.

 OPPORTUNITIES:

The Indian IT staffing industry has grown significantly over the years and has become a major contributor to the
country’s economy. With the advent of new technologies and evolving work models, the industry is constantly
reshaping itself, requiring agility and foresight.

Looking ahead, GCCs represent one of the most promising opportunities for the Indian IT landscape. Global
enterprises are increasingly relying on GCCs in India not only for cost efficiency but also for driving innovation, R&D,
digital transformation, and customer experience. By combining our expertise in IT staffing, consulting, and digital
services with GCC setup capabilities, we are uniquely positioned to deliver integrated solutions that align with this
global trend.

In parallel, traditional growth drivers remain strong. The rising adoption of cloud computing, big data analytics, and
artificial intelligence continues to fuel demand for specialized IT talent. Additionally, niche sectors such as healthcare IT,
e-commerce, and fintech are expanding rapidly, creating demand for professionals with domain-specific expertise.

The Indian government’s focus on digitalization and initiatives like “Make in India” further enhance the business case for
global companies to establish GCCs in India, supported by strong digital infrastructure and favorable investment
policies.

Overall, the future looks bright for the Company. With a dual focus on strengthening our IT staffing and consulting
business while positioning ourselves as a leader in GCC setup and management, we are confident of capturing
emerging opportunities and driving sustainable growth.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

www.mindpooltech.com
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 DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

Standalone Performance: During the year under review your company reported dip in revenue from
operations amounting to an amount of INR 2,656.42 Lakhs as compared to an amount of INR 3,497.93 Lakhs
earned in the previous Financial Year. The Company has marked a fall of 24 % in its turnover during the FY 2024-
25 as compared to a growth of 3.16 % made during the FY 2023-24.

The Company has recorded a Gross Profit (PBT) of INR 6.84 lakhs compared to INR 24.69 lakhs earned in the
previous financial year and Profit after tax (PAT) of INR 8.06 Lakhs as compared to a profit of INR 17.93 Lakhs
earned during the previous financial year.

The EPS for the FY 2024-25 is reported to be INR 0.19 as compared to INR 0.42 in FY 2023-24 , showing a fall of
54.76%.

Consolidated Performance: Considering the slowdown it the Global economy the Consolidated Revenue 
during the period under report aggregates to an amount of INR 3440.76 Lakhs as compared to an amount of 
INR 4437.31 Lakhs earned during the previous financial year resulting in a reduction of 22.46%, the Company 
has recorded a Profit of INR 9.60 Lakhs during the year under report as compared to profit of INR 19.53 Lakhs in 
the previous year 2023-4 resulting in a fall of 50.84%.

The markets in USA have not been performing well, which has adversely affected the performance of the wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, i.e. Mindpool Technologies INC, USA, thereby resulting in pressure on
profitability during FY 2024-25. The decline in profits can be attributed to weak economic indicators in the US,
which created challenging market conditions impacting our business operations. Consequently, the cautious
outlook detailed above has had a negative impact on our overall performance.

Subsidiary Performance:

Mindpool Technologies Inc.- The wholly owned subsidiary of the Company generated a Revenue of USD 0.927
Million (INR. 784.35 Lakh) during the period under report as compared to an amount of USD 1.135 Million (INR.
959.56 Lakh) earned during the previous financial year resulting in a reduction of around 18 %. Also, the
Company has recorded Profit of USD 1,814.26 (INR 1.53 Lakhs) during the year under report as compared to
loss of USD 1,936.02 (INR 1.64 Lakhs) in the previous year 2023-24 resulting in a fall of approx. 6.29%.

 INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENTS:

The Indian IT staffing industry continues to demonstrate strong growth momentum, supported by the country’s
position as the third-largest global startup hub with over 1.8 lakh DPIIT-recognized startups and more than 112
unicorns contributing significantly to employment generation. The overall staffing and recruitment market,
valued at approximately USD 18 billion in 2022, is projected to reach USD 49 billion by 2030, reflecting a CAGR
of 13.2%. Within this, the IT flexi-staffing segment, estimated at USD 4.9 billion in FY 2024 with a workforce of
nearly 600,000 professionals, is expected to grow at an annual rate of 7% through FY 2026. The demand for
specialized technology skills in areas such as artificial intelligence, machine learning, cloud computing, and data
analytics continues to rise, with IT hiring anticipated to grow by 15–20% and niche roles by 30–35% in 2025.
Recent trends also indicate a 5.5% quarter-on-quarter increase in IT staffing, with short-term projections of a 10–
12% rise in IT services hiring, underscoring the sector’s resilience and potential for sustained expansion.

In this context, the Company is strategically positioned to capitalize on emerging opportunities, strengthen its
service offerings, and deliver long-term value to its stakeholders.

www.mindpooltech.com
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1. Focus on Upskilling and Reskilling: To address skill shortages, companies and staffing firms are investing in
structured programs to enhance talent capabilities internally

2. Integration of Automation and AI: Recruitment processes are being streamlined through automation and AI,
improving efficiency and accuracy in candidate-role matching.

3. Rising Demand for Cybersecurity Professionals: With greater emphasis on data security and privacy, the need
for specialized IT security talent continues to grow.

4. Adoption of Ethical AI Practices: Staffing agencies are prioritizing fairness and transparency by embedding
ethical standards in AI-driven hiring solutions.

5. Emerging Opportunities in GCCs: The rapid expansion of Global Capability Centres (GCCs) in India is creating
significant demand for niche IT skills, presenting new avenues for staffing growth and strategic partnerships.

 RISK AND CONCERNS:

The Board of Directors of the Company has implemented a Risk Management policy to monitor the Risk Management
plan for Mindpool. The Head of Departments (HODs) are responsible for assessing the risk management strategies and
safeguarding their effectiveness and report the same to the Board of Directors. All Strategic Risks, Compliance Risks,
Operational Risks, Financial Risks & Reputational Risks are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a
continuous basis.

The immediate need for staffing companies is to acknowledge and understand the evolving dynamics of the business
and accordingly transform or adapt to the new changes. This can facilitate staffing companies in transforming from just
being labour market intermediates to future drivers of business for IT companies in India.

While the Indian IT staffing industry has seen tremendous growth in the past decade, it's not without its challenges.
One of the biggest challenges facing the industry is the shortage of skilled talent. With digital transformation taking
center stage, companies are looking for professionals with the latest skills and certifications. However, the supply of
such talent is limited.

To overcome this challenge, companies need to invest in training and upskilling their employees. This will not only help
them retain their existing talent but also attract new talent to their organization. Additionally, companies can partner
with educational institutions and industry bodies to promote IT education and training.

Another challenge is the increasing competition in the industry. With the rise of startups and the entry of global players,
the competition has become intense. Companies need to differentiate themselves by providing unique services and
solutions to their clients. They need to focus on building strong relationships with their clients and delivering quality
services.

Finally, the industry is also facing challenges related to data privacy and security. With the increasing number of cyber
threats, companies need to invest in robust security measures to protect their clients' data. They need to comply with
the latest data privacy regulations and ensure that their employees are trained in data security best practices.

In conclusion, the challenges facing the Indian IT staffing industry can be overcome by investing in talent development, 
building strong client relationships, and prioritizing data privacy and security. Companies that can successfully navigate 
these challenges are poised for success in the years to come.
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Annexure-IV
 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY:

Moreover, we report that there are appropriate systems and processes in the Company corresponding to the size and
operations of the company. Our legal and compliance team ensures compliance to all the laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines. We further report that during the period under report, we have undertaken the best practices & significant
corporate events/actions that have a bearing on the Company’s affairs towards fulfilment of the referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. The report submitted by the Internal Auditor on the controls and functioning of
the various departments further ensures that a system of proper checks and balances is maintained within the
Company.

A Year of Excellence in Compliance and Client Relations : The year has been marked by significant progress in
knowledge acquisition and understanding, with our teams actively engaging in training and upskilling initiatives. This
commitment to continuous learning has empowered our workforce to adapt swiftly to changes in the business
landscape.

Our unwavering commitment to compliance has been the bedrock of our success. Throughout the year, we have
ensured timely fulfilment of all legal and statutory requirements, and there have been no delays or overdue in any
compliances. Our implementation of the "doer and checker" principle has resulted in the delivery of accurate reports to
our clients, minimizing the likelihood of non-compliances during audits. We are proud to share that one of our key
clients, with whom we engage regularly for compliance reporting, has reported no instances of non-compliance. This
achievement is a testament to the dedication and professionalism of our compliance team.

Moreover, our client-centric approach remains at the heart of our operations. Regular calls with our finance and
compliance teams facilitate swift resolutions to any client queries, ensuring a seamless and productive collaboration.
We deeply appreciate the trust and support of our employees, clients, and stakeholders, and we look forward to
building on this success in the coming year. Together, we will continue striving for excellence in all aspects of our
business operations.

 HUMAN RESOURCES & INDUSTRIAL RELATION:

We have maintained very cordial Industrial relations throughout the year. Measures for welfare of employees, Training
& Development were given great importance by the management. Our HR team implemented effective practices such
as employee empowerment, goal setting and open communication, resulting in a positive culture that leads to the
workforce delivering better client experiences.

Empowering Growth through Learning and Engagement: At our core, we understand the value of continuous learning
and development. Throughout the year, we conducted 09 insightful learning sessions, with our senior members and
leaders contributing significantly. This investment in our employees' growth equips them to thrive in any situation,
setting them on a path to success.

Employee engagement is vital to us, and we are proud of our comprehensive engagement charter, which extends its
reach to those working from home (WFH). Exciting activities organized by our Human Resource team, including Team
Lunch, Games and treks, added a special touch to their experiences. We also introduced sports sessions for our female
employees, fostering a happy and productive work environment.

Recognizing outstanding contributions, we introduced "Best Employee" awards, alongside our existing recognition
programs. Our HR team implemented effective practices such as employee empowerment, goal setting and open
communication, resulting in a positive culture that leads to the workforce delivering better client experiences. As we
embrace the future with enthusiasm, we celebrate a year of growth, learning, and unwavering dedication

 ENVIRONMENT CARE, SOCIAL ACCOUNTABILITY AND QUALITY SYSTEM:
Mindpool is committed to maintain the highest standards of social accountability & quality standards. We believe that
ensuring sound corporate governance is imperative to improve and retain investor trust.

We have implemented several social accountability benchmarks to create value for multiple benefits for the society.
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 SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE:

Mindpool has been carrying out its business operations in the areas of IT Enabled Services and support services to
other organizations. All the services provided by the Company are relating to support services to other organizations
and accordingly the revenue can be segmented into five heads, i.e. Staffing Services, Digital Marketing Services,
Routing Services, Offshore Development Center (ODC) and Others. The revenue and profit bifurcation of the Company
based on the abovementioned segments are as follows:

Profit 
Percentage

Profit/(Loss)
(INR 000’s)

Revenue Percentage
Revenue

(INR 000’s)
Segment

Sr. 
No.

48.38%956.2748.89%1,29,881.51Staffing Services1

4.54%89.80 1.67%4,438.95Digital Marketing Services2

39.88%788.2746.91%1,24,623.80Routing Services3

7.20%
142.323.22%8.542.30

Offshore Development Center
(ODC)

4

(0.69%)(1,845)Others5

100% 36.11100%2,65,641.56TOTAL

-(1,293.74)--Interest Cost6

-(11.42)--Total Deduction

100%(1,293.74)100%2,65,641.56Net Result

 DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES (I.E. CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE AS COMPARED TO THE IMEDIATELY
PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR) IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, ALONG WITH EXPLANATIONS THEREFORE,
INCLUDING:

ReasonChange %2023-242024-25Financial Ratio

The deviation is due to increase in 
debtors but decrease in Turnover

68.01%3.471.11Debtors turnover ratio

No inventory as Company provides 
services

-NANAInventory Turnover ratio

23.97%3.772.87
Interest Coverage Ratio

-18.47%4.213.43Current ratio

--21.89%0.300.36Debt equity ratio

The Deviation is due to Decrease in 
Turnover and Operating Profit

63.38%0.710.26Operating Profit Margin (%) 

The Deviation is due to Decrease in 
Turnover and Net Profit

40.78%0.510.30Net Profit Margin (%)

 DETAILS OF ANY CHANGE IN RETURN ON NET WORTH AS COMPARED TO THE IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS 
FINANCIAL YEAR ALONG WITH A DETAILED EXPLANATION THEREOF

ReasonChange %2023-242024-25Ratio

The deviation is due to  decrease in Net 
Income

72.49%0.02%0.01%Return on Net-worth (ROI) (%)

www.mindpooltech.com

48



Annexure-IV

 FUTURE PROSPECTS OF COMPANY:

Looking forward, Mindpool will continue to seek out new and improved ways of efficiently delivering the services that
our clientele needs. We have formulated a sound corporate vision and long-term management plan, while ensuring
that we have constantly evolving management and business structures to respond quickly to the market needs &
globalization. We strive to create new avenues for adding more value for the “stakeholders” being investors, business
partners, employees, consumers, and communities as well.

 DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT:

The Company has followed all the treatments in the Financial Statements as per the prescribed Accounting Standards.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

This management discussion and analysis contain forward looking statements that reflects your Company’s current
views with respect to future events and financial performance. The actual results may differ materially from those
anticipated in the forward-looking statements as a result of many factors.

By Order of the Board

For, Mindpool Technologies Limited

Sd/-

Ritesh Ramavtar Sharma

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN:02676486Date: 05/09/2025
Place: Pune
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To,

The Members,

Mindpool Technologies Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Mindpool Technologies Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’) bearing CIN:
L72900PN2011PLC138607. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conduct/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Mindpool Technologies Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025, generally complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has generally proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records maintained by
Mindpool Technologies Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March 2025 according to the provisions of:

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
iii. The Depositories Act, 2018 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,

1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover) Regulations,

2011;
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2018;
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)

Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable)
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations,

2021; (Not Applicable)
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not

Applicable)
h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not Applicable)

and;
i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015. (As per Regulation 15 of SEBI LODR, Regulation 17 to Regulation 27 and Clauses (b)
to (i) of Sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and Para C, D & E Schedule V are not applicable to the
Company);

vi. Since the Company is engaged in providing support services to organizations and Consulting business. There
are no specific laws applicable to such sector.
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange(s), if applicable

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

1. The Companies Act, 2013

i. As on 30th September 2024, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company does not
consist of Non-Executive Directors as its members and to that extent it has not complied with Section 178(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

2. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999

i. The Company has filed Annual Performance Report of its wholly owned subsidiary beyond the prescribed time
and to that extent it has not complied with Regulation 15 of the Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue
of Any Foreign Security) Regulations, 2000.

3. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015

i. The Company has disclosed the resignation of the Compliance Officer to the Stock Exchange but it has not
submitted to the stock exchange, the letter of resignation along with the detailed reasons for the resignation of
the Compliance Officer within seven days from the date that such resignation came into effect and to that extent it
has not complied with Regulation 30 read with Schedule III Part A Para A (7C) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We further report that subject to our observations:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with a proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously. As per the records available in
the said minutes, there were no dissenting views expressed by any director in the meetings.

The Company has duly filled the E-Forms with the Registrar of Companies, Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the
Reserve Bank of India, except for a few instances, where the forms were filed beyond the prescribed time with payment
of additional fees.

We further report that the systems and processes in the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines need further improvement considering the size and operations of the Company

In accordance with rule 9(7) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, every Company was
required to disclose the details of the designated person as per Rule 9(4) of Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, in the Annual return. However, the available utility of Form MGT-7 on the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs Portal did not have a specific field to disclose the details of the said designated official. Hence the
said details of the designated official were not stated in the annual return filed by the Company for the year ended 31st
March 2024.
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We further report that during the audit period 

During the audit period the Company has not initiated any actions such as Public/ Right/ Preferential issue of shares/
debentures/ sweat equity, etc., Redemption/ buy-back of securities/ major decisions taken by the members in
pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013/ Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc and foreign
technical collaborations having a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above.

For KANJ & Co. LLP
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Sunil G. Nanal
Partner 
FCS No. 5977
CP No. 2809 

Date: 05/09/2025
Place: Pune 

UDIN: F005977G001179765
Firm Unique Code: P2000MH005900
Peer Review Number: 6309/2024 
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TO THE MEMBERS OF

MINDPOOL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of MINDPOOL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (“the
Parent”) and its subsidiaries i.e MINDPOOL TECHNOLOGIES INC (wholly owned subsidiary) (the Parent & its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group”) audit for which is not applicable as per US laws and as confirmed by the management
and based on Financial Statement submitted to us by the management on which we have relied upon which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. (Hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”). In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025, and its profit and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

• The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, for example, Business Responsibility Report, Director’s Report, Corporate
Governance Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Risk Management Report, etc. but does not include the
consolidated and standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

• Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

• In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

• If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALS & AUDIT REPORT
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Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows in accordance with the AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies are responsible
for assessing the ability of the respective companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to
liquidate or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We are also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters
communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the AS prescribed under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on March 31, 2024, taken
on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent, none of the directors of the Parent is disqualified as on March
31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”, which is based on the auditor’s
report of the Parent. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the Parent’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid/provided by the Parent to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of
the Act.
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h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its consolidated
financial statements.

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring the amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Parent.

iv. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with and the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

For R. B. Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 109971W

Sd/-

CA Abhinav Sharma
Partner
Membership No. 192590
UDIN: 25192590BMISWX5090

Place: Pune
Date: 29/05/2025
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(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Parent as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MINDPOOL
TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “Parent”), as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Parent is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Parent considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Parent’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Parent’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Parent’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Parent, has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Parent considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

.

For R. B. Sharma & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN. 109971W

sd/-

CA Abhinav Sharma

Partner

Membership No. 192590

UDIN:25192590BMISWX5090

Place: Pune
Date: 29/05/2025
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ForMindpool Technologies Limited

Sd/-
Poonam Sharma
Director
DIN : 03397469
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Uday Surpuriya
CFO
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Ritesh Sharma
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 02676486
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Binny Porwal
Company Secretary
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

For R. B. Sharma & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN. 109971W

sd/-

CA Abhinav Sharma

Partner

Membership No. 192590

UDIN:25192590BMISWX5090

Date: 29 May 2025

Place: Pune

(Amount in 000's) 

As on 31st March, 2024 (Rupees)As on 31st March, 2025 (Rupees)Note No.Particulars

EQUITY AND LIABILITIESA

Shareholders’ funds1
42,375.00 42,375.00 1(a) Share capital 

1,38,384.01 1,40,713.43 2(b) Reserves and surplus
(c) Minority Interest
(d) Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve

1,80,759.01 1,83,088.43 
Non-current liabilities2

--(a) Long-term borrowings
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

--(c) Long Term Provisions
4,732.79 3,869.40 3(d) Other Non Current Liabilities
4,732.79 3,869.40 

Current liabilities3
--(a) Short-term borrowings

8,129.30 31,230.42 4(b) Trade payables
24,904.40 11,326.38 5(c) Other current liabilities

419.79 411.38 6(d)Short Term Provision
33,453.49 42,968.18 

2,18,945.28 2,29,926.01 Total
ASSETSB
Non-current assets1
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible 
Assets

4,694.99 2,891.54 7(i) Property, Plant & Equipment
15.47 15.47 7(ii) Intangible Assets

(iii) Capital work-in-progress
4,710.46 2,907.00 

19,355.42 -8(b) Non-current Investments
-24,635.16 9(b) Other non-current assets

735.56 1,614.82 10(c) Deferred Tax assets (Net)
20,090.98 26,249.98 

Current assets2
--(a) Inventories

89,191.37 1,12,342.02 11(b) Trade receivables
7,796.07 4,664.26 12(c) Cash and cash equivalents

38,516.55 24,636.33 13(d) Short Term Loan & Advances
58,639.84 59,126.41 14(e) Other Current Assets

1,94,143.84 2,00,769.02 

2,18,945.28 2,29,926.01 Total
01 to 21Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

22 to 30Significant Accounting Policies and Additional 
Information to Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF BALANCE SHEET FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2025
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For Mindpool Technologies Limited

Sd/-
Poonam Sharma
Director
DIN : 03397469
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Uday Surpuriya
CFO
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Ritesh Sharma
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 02676486
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Binny Porwal
Company Secretary
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

For R. B. Sharma & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN. 109971W

sd/-

CA Abhinav Sharma

Partner

Membership No. 192590

UDIN:25192590BMISWX5090

Date: 29 May 2025

Place: Pune

(Amount in 000's

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2024 
(Rupees)

For the Year Ended 31st March, 
2025 (Rupees)

Note No.Particulars

4,43,731.49 3,44,076.19 15Revenue from Operations1
3,329.00 2,529.10 16Other Income 

4,47,060.49 3,46,605.29 Total Income  

Expenses2
--Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
--Changes in inventories of Stock in Trade

4,207.57 1,803.48 17Depreciation
2,494.66 1,428.86 18Finance Cost

2,26,017.52 2,03,240.30 19Employees Benefit Expenses
2,11,711.49 1,39,081.32 20Other Expenses

4,44,431.24 3,45,700.69 Total expenses

2,629.25 904.59 V. Profit before exceptional and extraordinary 
items and tax (1-2)

3

Exceptional Items4

2,629.25 904.59 
Profit After exceptional and extraordinary items 
(3-4)

5

Tax expense: 4
1,107.18 824.20 Current Tax Provision

430.77 (879.26)Deferred Tax

1,952.83 959.65 Profit / (Loss) for the period (3 - 4)5

Earning per Equity Share6
0.46 0.23 Basic Earnings per share of Rs 10/- each
0.46 0.23 Diluted Earnings per share of Rs 10/- each

01 to 21Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements
22 to 30Significant Accounting Policies and Additional 

Information to Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2025
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement For Period Ending on 31st March  2025
(Amount in 000's) 

As on 31.03.2024As on 31.03.2025Particulars Sr. No.

CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES A)

2,632.69904.59 Profit / (Loss) before tax 
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash provided by operating 
activities 

4,207.57 1,803.48 Depreciation 

2,496.471,428.86 Interest & Finance Cost 

(3,329.00)(2,026.87)Interest Income 

712.481,369.71 Effect of Exchange Rate changes 

6.720.20 3,479.78 Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 

-Adjusted for: 

--Inventories 

17,554.73 (23,150.65)Trade Receivables 

(61.65)13,880.22 Short term loans and advances  

(14,795.47)(486.48)Other current assets 

643.21 23,101.12 Trade payables 

11,983.51(13,578.02)Other current liabilities 

(1,496.35)(8.41)Short term provisions 

20,548.181,688.49 Cash Generated From Operations 

1,107.18 824.20 Direct Tax Paid 

19,441.00 864.29 Net cash flow from Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES B)

(364.80)Payment towards capital expenditure 

-
(3,730.66)

Investment in Flat

3,329.00 2,026.87 Interest Income 

2,964.20(1,703.79)Net cash flow from Investing Activities 
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For Mindpool Technologies Limited

Sd/-
Poonam Sharma
Director
DIN : 03397469
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Uday Surpuriya
CFO
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Ritesh Sharma
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 02676486
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Binny Porwal
Company Secretary
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

For R. B. Sharma & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN. 109971W

sd/-

CA Abhinav Sharma

Partner

Membership No. 192590

UDIN:25192590BMISWX5090

Date: 29 May 2025

Place: Pune

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES C)
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings & Long Term Liabilities 

(18,848.58)Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings 

(2,494.66)(1,428.86)                               Interest & Financial Charges 

(863.38)Proceeds from Non-Current Liabilities

(21,345.05)(2,292.24)Net cash used in Financing Activities 

1,060.15(3,131.74)Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 

6,735.61 7,795.77 Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 

7,795.77 4,664.03 Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Notes: 
(i) The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Accounting Standard 3 
"Cash 
Flow  Statement", issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
(ii) Figures in bracket indicate outgo.
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
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Audited Consolidated Segment Report As on 31st March, 2025
(Amount in 000's)

Half YearHalf Year
30-09-202431-03-2025ParticularsSr. No.

Segment Revenue1
58,992.03 70,889.48 Segment – Staffing(a)
4,404.76 34.20 Segment – Digital(b)

49,174.72 75,449.08 Segment – Routing(c)
5,889.82 2,652.48 Segment – Offshore Development Center(d)

-1,311.12 -533.89 Unallocated WIP(e)
1,17,150.21 1,48,491.35 Total

0.000.00Less: Inter Segment Revenue

117150.21148491.35Net sales/Income From Operations

Segment Results (Profit)(+)/ Loss (-) before tax and interest 
from Each segment)2

530.93 425.34 Segment – Staffing(a)

88.10 1.71 Segment – Digital(b)
555.92 232.35 Segment – Routing(c)
116.80 25.52 Segment – Offshore Development Center(d)

--Unallocated(e)
1,291.74 684.92 Total

Less: 
714.45 579.29 Interest(i)

Other Un-allocable Expenditure net off(ii)
Un-allocable income

577.29105.63Total Profit Before Tax

Capital Employed3

Segment – A(a)
Segment – B(b)
Segment – C(c)
ODC(d)

42,37542,375Unallocated(e)
42,375 423.75 Total

For R. B. Sharma & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN. 109971W

sd/-

CA Abhinav Sharma

Partner

Membership No. 192590

UDIN:25192590BMISWX5090

Date: 29 May 2025

Place: Pune

For Mindpool Technologies Limited

Sd/-
Poonam Sharma
Director
DIN : 03397469
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Uday Surpuriya
CFO
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Ritesh Sharma
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 02676486
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Binny Porwal
Company Secretary
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025
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Notes to Accounts
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(Amount in 000's)Note No : 01 Share Capital
As at 31st March, 2024As at 31st March, 2025

Particulars

Authorised
1,20,000 1,20,000 120,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

(120,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up
42,375 42,375 42,37,500  Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

(Previous Year - 4237500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid)

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up during the year
42,375 42,375 42,37,500  Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

-(Previous Year - 4237500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid)

42,375 42,375 Closing Balance  Equity Shares of Rs 10 each

Note No: 1a Reconciliation of number of shares
As at 31st March, 2024As at 31st March, 2025

Equity Shares

No of Shares 
(In Thousands)

No of Shares 
(In Thousands)

4,237.50 4,237.50 Balance at the beginning of the year

--Add: Shares issued during the year

--Add: Bonus Shares issued during the year

4,237.50 4,237.50 Balance at the end of the year

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares:
The company has issued only one class of equity share having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per 
share.

The company has only one class of share having par value of Rs 10. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

Note No: 1b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% Shares in the Company Equity Shares with Voting Rights

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 
2025 

As at 31st March, 
2025 Particulars

Holding % No of Shares (In 
Thousands) 

Holding %No of Shares (In 
Thousands)

35.52%1,505.00 35.52%1,505.00 Ritesh Sharma

35.52%1,505.00 35.52%1,505.00 Poonam Sharma

5.10%216.00 0.00%-Doshi Hetal S

0.00%-5.14%218.00 Shashank Doshi

76.13%3,226.00 76.18%3,228.00 Total
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Note No: 1(c) The Shareholding of Promoter

% Change during the year% of total shares
No of Shares (In 

Thousands)Particulars

-
35.52%1,505.00 Ritesh Sharma

-

-
35.52%1,505.00 Poonam Sharma

-71.03%3,010.00 Total 

(d)Aggregate Nummber of Bonus shares issued, shares issued other than cash & shares bought back during the period of five years immediately 
preceding the reporting date

As at 31st March, 2024As at 31st March, 2025

(Nos) (Nos) 

--

Bonus Equity share of Rs. 10 each issued during the period of five years immediately 
preceding the reporting date

(Amount in 000's)Note No : 02 Reserves & Surplus
As at 31st March, 2024As at 31st March, 2025

Particulars

A) Security Premium Account 
14,715.00 14,715.00 Opening Balance  

Add: Premium on Fresh issue of shares  

Less: Public Issue Expenses  

14,715.00 14,715.00 Closing Balance  

B) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 
4,892.50 5,604.99 Opening Balance 

712.49 1,369.76 Profit for the Year 

5,604.99 6,974.75 Closing Balance 

B) Profit & Loss Account 

1,16,107.75 1,18,064.02 Opening Balance 

1,956.27 959.65 Profit for the Year 

--Less: Profit/Losss From Associate Company 

1,18,064.02 1,19,023.68 Closing Balance 

1,38,384.01 1,40,713.43 Total 
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(Amount in 000's) Note No : 03 Other Non Current Liabilities
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

4,732.79 
3,869.40 Gratuity payable 

4,732.79 3,869.40 Total 

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 04 Trade Payable
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

121.76 2,473.30 Payable for MSME 

8,007.54 28,757.12 Other 

8,129.30 31,230.42 
Total 

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 05 Other Current Liabilities
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

10,394.78 6,672.76 Statutory Payble
14,561.25 3,351.58 Other Payble 

42.00 Riverdale Flat Deposit 

(51.63)1,260.04 Federal Cash Credit Accounts 18185500000301 

24,904.40 11,326.38 Total 

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 06 Short Term Provisions
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

12.79 6.38 ESIC Payable 
2.00 -Employee LWF payable 

405.00 405.00 Other Short Term Provision 

419.79 411.38 Total 

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 08 Non-current Investments
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

Investment In Shares : 
19,355.42 

-
S A Tech Software Ltd 

19,355.42 -
Total 
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(Amount in 000's) Note No : 09 Other Non-Current Assets
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

Non Quoted (At Cost) 
Investment in Wholly Own Subsidiary Company 

--Mindpool Technologies Inc USA 

Investment In Shares  
19,355.42 S A Tech Software Ltd 

--Less: Loss From Associate Company 

-4,181.67 Investment In Flat 

-1,098.08 FD With Federal Bank 

-24,635.16 Total 

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 10 Deferred Tax Asset
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

735.56 
1,614.82 Defferred Tax Asset 

735.56 1,614.82 
Total 

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 11 Trade Receivable 
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 
7,832.14 4,020.34 Sundry Debtors - Export 

42,583.39 38,179.30 Sundry Debtors - Domestic 
-Debts outstanding for less than six months from the date due for payment 

38,775.84 70,142.38 Other Debts More than 6 Months 

89,191.37 1,12,342.02 Total 

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 12 Cash & Cash Equivalents
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
--Cash in hand 

Bank Balances- In Current Accounts 
4,708.53 3,389.28 Federal Bank Current A/c 18180200003721 

Federal Bank Escrow account 18180200003820 
143.11 -ICICI Bank  

58.79 46.90 RBL Bank (400021022011) 
2,455.04 1,162.98 Citi Bank Checking 

430.59 65.09 Mercury Bank Account 
7,796.07 4,664.26 Total 
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(Amount in 000's) Note No: 13 Short Term Loan and Advances
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

28.00 28.00 Deposits 

36,939.47 24,608.33 Other Advances 

1,549.08 -
FD With Federal Bank 

38,516.55 24,636.33 
Total 

(Amount in 000's) Note No: 14 Other Current Assets
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

1,305.89 2,305.70 Prepaid Expenses 

49,793.45 46,844.03 Unbilled revenue 

918.97 1,819.49 TDS Receivable 

91.01 587.06 Interest Receivable  

6,530.53 7,570.13 Income Tax Refund Receivable 

58,639.85 59,126.41 Total 

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 15 Revenue from Operations
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

Sale of Services  

39,664.20 12,981.25 Services - Export 

3,10,128.47 2,52,660.31 Services - Domestic 

93,938.83 78,434.63 Sales - Others 

4,43,731.49 3,44,076.19 Sub Total 

(Amount in 000's) Note No: 16 Other Income
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

2,945.05 2,026.87 Interest Received 

-210.00 Rent on Riverdale Flat 

-292.23 Gratuity Income 

383.94 Creditors written off 

3,329.00 2,529.10 Total 

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 17 Depreciation & Amortised Cost

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

4,207.57 1,803.48 Depreciation on Tangible Assets 

--Amortization on Intangible Assets 

4,207.57 1,803.48 Total 
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(Amount in 000's) Note No : 18 Finance Cost
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

1,803.14 901.38 Interest on Bill Discounting 

691.52 527.48 Bank Charges And Commissions 

2,494.66 1,428.86 Total 

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 19 Employee Benefit Expenses
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

2,09,982.73 1,91,856.77 Salaries, Incentives & Contracting Manpower 
1,386.24 516.31 Staff Welfare Expenses 
5,855.69 4,391.77 Director Remuneration 

529.93 -Gratuity 
1,665.66 1,204.38 Insurance for Employees 
6,597.27 5,271.08 Contribution towards various Funds for Employees  

2,26,017.52 2,03,240.30 Total 

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 20 Other Expenses
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

108.50 105.00 Secretarial Audit Fees 

861.45 339.29 Dues and Subscriptions 

733.83 584.91 Insurance Expenses 

2,010.47 1,717.91 Office Expense 

1,21,671.14 1,06,031.58 Professional Fees 

3,487.61 2,688.56 Rent 

66.23 146.98 Taxes & Licenses 

-0.85 Meals and Entertainment 

75,140.55 21,683.28 Contracting Expenses 

958.25 152.36 Compliance Expenses 

778.83 2,432.68 Interest on Statutory Payment 

350.00 350.00 Statutory audit fees 

2,791.92 1,645.15 Recruitment Expenses 

432.06 360.06 Advertising And Marketing 

-7.95 Penalties & Settlements 

2,320.64 834.76 Other Expenses 

2,11,711.49 1,39,081.32 Total 

Note:21  Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (the ‘MSMED Act’)
Refer Note no-10 Trade Receivables and Note no- 04 Trade Payables.
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Note No 7:  Tangible Assets and Intangible Assets

Net BlockDepreciationGross Block

Particulars

As at As at Total uptoDepreciationUptoAs at DeletionsAdditionsAs at 

31-Mar-2431-Mar-2531-Mar-25during the 

Additions
/

Deletions01-Apr-2431-Mar-25
during 

theduring the 01-Apr-24

yearyearyear

Tangible Asset

185.86 166.25 3,158.75 19.61 -3,139.14 3,325.00 --3,325.00 Car

--25.30 --25.30 25.30 --25.30 Printer

2,917.47 2,159.03 2,054.14 758.44 1,295.70 4,213.17 --4,213.17 Furniture

-

31.51 26.16 148.14 5.35 142.80 174.31 --174.31 Plant & Machinary

1,560.19 540.09 9,821.20 1,020.09 8,801.11 10,361.29 --10,361.29 Computer

Intangible Asset

15.47 15.47 293.87 -293.87 309.33 --309.33 Computer Software

4,677.49 2,907.00 15,501.40 1,803.48 -13,697.91 18,408.40 --18,408.40 Total

8,553.23 4,710.46 13,697.91 4,181.02 26.55 9,490.34 18,408.40 -364.80 18,043.60 Previous Year
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note no. 22: Corporate Information

The company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra State, Pune vide Registration no.
L72900PN2011PLC138607 dated 21 February 2011 under the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the
Company is situated at 3rd & 4th, Sr. No. 133/1/316111 GK mall, near Konkane Chowk, Pimple Saudagar, Pune MH
411027 IN. The Company is mainly engaged in business of IT Staffing, software development and information
technology enabled services.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

a. The consolidated financial statements relate to Mindpool Technologies Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiary.
The financial statements of the subsidiary used in consolidation are drawn/ prepared for consolidation up to the same
reporting date as the Company. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

The financial statements of the Group Companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and intragroup transaction
and balances and unrealized gains/(losses) are eliminated upon Consolidation.

b. The CFS are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the Company’s separate financial statement

Note no. 23: Significant Accounting Policies:

A. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:
These financial statements are prepared on historical cost basis (except for revaluation of certain fixed assets) in
accordance with applicable Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013
and on the accounting principles of a going concern. The Company follows the mercantile system of accounting and
recognizes income and expenditure on accrual basis except those with significant uncertainties.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule III to The Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of Services and the time
between the hiring of Technical personal for Execution of Software projects and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as three to four months for the purpose of current and
non-current classification of assets and liabilities. The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees.

B. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires Board of Directors to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosures of contingent
liabilities on the date of financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenses for that year. Actual results
could differ from these estimates. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in
which the results are known/ materialized.

C. Revenue Recognition:
i) Services:
Revenue is measured by the charges made to customers or clients for goods supplied and services rendered to them
and by the charges and rewards arising from the use of resources by them. Sales are net of sales returns, trade and other
discounts, sales taxes and excise duties.
i) Other Income:
Interest is recognized using the time-proportion method, based on rates implicit in the transaction.

D. Fixed Assets and Depreciation:
Depreciation on fixed asset is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on straight line method over the useful life
of assets as prescribed in Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The revised carrying amount of the fixed
assets identified as impaired, is amortized over the estimated residual life of the respective fixed asset. The Company has
used the following lives to provide for depreciation on its fixed assets.
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Useful Life (In years)Type of Asset

03Computer & Software

10Furniture & Fixtures

05Office Equipments

10Motor Cars –Non commercial

E. Transactions in Foreign Currency:

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate of exchange in force on the date of the transactions. Current
assets, current liabilities and borrowings denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate prevalent
at the date of the Balance Sheet. The resultant gain/loss are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss, except in cases
where they relate to the acquisition of fixed assets in which case, they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.

F. Government Grants and Subsidy:

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that (a) the company will
comply with the conditions attached to them, and (b) the grant/subsidy will be received. When the grant or subsidy
relates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an
asset, it is reduced from the cost of the asset. Grants which are given as equity support are disclosed as promoter
contribution under the head Capital Reserve.

G. Investments:
a) Investments, which are readily realizable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on

which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as
long-term investments.

b) Long-term investments are valued at cost less provision for diminution other than temporary, in the value of such
investments. Current investments are valued at lower of cost and fair value.

H. Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing cost attributable to the acquisition and construction of qualifying fixed assets are capitalized as part of the
cost of such asset up to the date when such asset is ready for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged to the
Profit & Loss Account

I. Leases:

a) Finance Lease: -
Assets acquired under finance lease are capitalized and the corresponding lease liability is recognized at lower of the fair
value of the leased assets and the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease. Initial costs
directly attributable to lease are recognized with the asset under lease.

b) Operating Lease: -
Lease of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Lease payments/revenue under operating leases are recognized as an expense/income on accrual
basis in accordance with the respective lease agreements.
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J. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in
ascertaining the company’s earnings per share are the net profit or loss for the period after deducting preference
dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the period.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted
for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of
equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings
per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

K. Income Tax:
Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting year in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognized for all the timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred
tax assets. Deferred tax assets are recognized and carry forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the Balance Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date, the group reassesses unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax
and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing
taxation laws.

L. Impairment of Assets:

In accordance with AS 28 on ‘Impairment of Assets’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, where
there is an indication of impairment of the Company’s assets related to cash generating units, the carrying amounts of
such assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any impairment. The recoverable
amount of such assets is estimated as the higher of its net selling price and its value in use. An impairment loss is
recognized whenever the carrying amount of such assets exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognized
in the profit and loss account. If at the balance sheet date there is any indication that a previously assessed impairment
loss no longer exists, then such loss is reversed and the assets are restated to that effect.

M. Contingent Liabilities / Assets and Provisions

Contingent Liabilities in respect of show cause notices received are considered only when they are converted into
demands. Contingent Liabilities under various fiscal laws include those in respect of which the Company / Department is
in appeal. A provision is made based on a reliable estimate when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle an obligation. Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in notes to financial
statements. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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Note no. 24: - Additional Information to the Financial Statements

24.01 Contingent liability as may arise on account of none / late compliance of certain fiscal statement – amount
unascertainable.

24.02 The amounts under the head short term borrowing, trade payables, trade receivables and loans and advances
including those adjusted during the year are subject to confirmation and reconciliation and consequent adjustment
thereof, if any.

24.03 Expenditure incurred on employees holding shares of the company, who were in respect of remuneration of more
than 2 Lakh p.m., if employed for part of the year or 24 Lakh p.a. – Mr. Ritesh Sharma: Rs. 2,927.84/- Thousands.

24.04 Remuneration to Directors:

i) Remuneration paid during the year:

-Mrs. Poonam Sharma: Rs. 1,463.92/- Thousands
- Mr. Ritesh Sharma: Rs. 2,927.84/- Thousands

ii) Remuneration paid during previous year:

-Mrs. Poonam Sharma: Rs. 2,927.84/- Thousands
- Mr. Ritesh Sharma: Rs. 2,927.84/- Thousands

24.05 Appropriate Income Tax Provision made for Income tax liability during the year.

24.06 Disclosure required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
Refer Note no-10 Trade Receivables and Note no- 04 Trade Payables.

24.07 Related Party Transactions:

Details of related parties:

Mindpool Technologies Inc Subsidiary Companyi

Mrs. Poonam Sharma
Mr. Ritesh Sharma 
Mr. Kaustubh Karve (Independent Director)
Mr. Sunil Jain (Independent Director)
Mr. Shailendrasingh Naiyyar (Independent Director)

Directorsii

Mr. Uday Surpuriya(CFO)KMP’siii

Mrs. Binny Porwal(CS)

www.mindpooltech.com
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Details of Related Party transaction during the year ended 31st March, 2025 and balance outstanding
as at 31st March, 2025.

For the year ended 31st

March, 2024

(Rupees in 000’s)

For the year ended 31st 
March, 2025

(Rupes in 000’s)

Particulars

Director Remuneration

2,927.841,463.92Mrs. Poonam Sharma

2,927.842,927.84Mr. Ritesh Sharma

--Loan Balance outstanding at the year end

Remuneration to Related Parties
854.251,158.39Sathish Kumar (CFO)
964.011,015.67Uday Pramod Surpuriy (CFO)
827.97320.64Sanskar Prabhakar (Company Secretary)

-574.42Binny Porwal (Company Secretary)
Subsidiary Company

6,857.260.85Trade Receivables

Note:

(i) No amount has been provided for as doubtful debt. Also no amount has been written off/back during the year.
(ii) Related parties are as identified by the Management and relied upon by the Auditors.

Note 25: Gratuity

Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure @
15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The scheme is unfunded.

31-Mar-2431-Mar-25Profit & Loss Account

(Rupees in 000’s)(Rupees in 000’s)
2,239.791,747.12Current service cost
300.11328.63Interest on obligation

--Expected return on plan assets
-2,009.96-2,367.97Net actuarial loss/(gain)

--Recognised Past Service Cost-Vested
--Recognised Past Service Cost-Unvested
--Loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement

529.93-292.23Total included in 'Employee Benefit Expense
Expenses deducted from the fund                                                   

529.93-292.23Total Charge to P&L                                                          

Rs.292.23/- Thousands have been adjusted with retained earnings, since in Previous year FY 2023-24, Company has 
charged off earlier year provision for gratuity in retained earnings, therefore reversal of such provision also adjusted with
retained earnings during the FY 2024-25.
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31-Mar-2431-Mar-25Balance Sheet

(Rupees in 000’s(Rupees in 000’s
4,202.854,732.79Opening Defined Benefit Obligation

--Transfer in/(out) obligation
2,239.791,747.12Current service cost

300.11328.63Interest cost

-2,009.96-2,367.97Actuarial loss (gain)
--Past service cost
--Loss (gain) on curtailments
--Liabilities extinguished on settlements

--Liabilities assumed in an amalgamation in the nature of purchase

--Exchange differences on foreign plans                                           
--571.15Benefits paid                                                                    

4,732.793,869.40Closing Defined Benefit Obligation                                                  

31-Mar-2431-Mar-25
Principle actuarial assumptions

(Rupees)(Rupees)

7.20%6.61% p.aDiscount Rate

Not ApplicableNot ApplicableExpected Return on Plan Assets

10.00%10.00%Salary Growth Rate

20.00% p.a at 
younger ages 
reducing to 

10.00% p.a at 
older ages

20.00% p.a at 
younger ages 
reducing to 

10.00% p.a at 
older agesWithdrawal Rates

Note 26: Balance confirmations

In respect of the balance confirmations sought for by the company from its debtors and creditors, very few parties have
responded to the request. As such, balances in the accounts of debtors, creditors, advances and deposits are taken as
appearing in the accounts.

Note 27: Information about Business Segments

The Company has identified segment reporting and accordingly the Segment Report for half year ended 30th
September 2024 and half year and year ended 31st March 2025 is presented hereby in accordance with AS-17.

Note 28: Previous year figures.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's
classification / disclosure.

Note 29: Rounding Off

As per the amendment notification for Schedule III dated 27th March 2021 it is now mandatory for every company to
round-off the figures appearing in financial statements. Since the turnover of the company is less than 100 crores, the
figures in financial statements have been converted to the nearest thousand.
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Note 30: Others:

i) As on March 31st, 2025, the Company has one Wholly-owned Subsidiary – Mindpool Technologies INC.

For and on behalf of the Board
For Mindpool Technologies Limited

Sd/-
Poonam Sharma
Director
DIN : 03397469

Sd/-
Ritesh Sharma
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 02676486

Date: 29/05/2025
Place: Pune
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TO,
THE MEMBERS OF,
Mindpool Technologies Limited,

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mindpool Technologies Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st

March, 2025, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have no key matters to be communicated in our report.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure 
to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report Corporate Governance and Shareholders information, but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our 
audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained 
during our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

STANDALONE FINANCIALS & AUDIT REPORT
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are not responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters
communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of

India in Terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement of the matters
specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. As required by Section143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

a) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in ‘Annexure B’. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

b) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16), In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

c) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. The Company have pending litigations against them but the management believes that the litigations will not
impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

For R. B. Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants
F. R. No. 109971W

Sd/-

CA Abhinav Sharma
M.No. 192590
Partner
UDIN: 25192590BMISWW2832

Place: Pune
Date: 29/05/2025
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(Referred to in paragraph 2 of Our Report on “Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report
to the members of MINDPOOL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED)

(i) (a)(A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets;

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items in a phased manner over a period of
3 years which, in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. Pursuant
to the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee, and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) are held in the name of the company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the record of the
company, the company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible
assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the record of the
company no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) Company is in the Business of I.T Staffing and other I.T enabled services hence there is no Physical Inventory in
the books of the Company. Hence clause (ii)(a) is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in
aggregate, from banks based on security of current assets.

(iii) The company has not made investments during the year in companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLP’s)
or any other parties, however the company has granted unsecured loans to a company.

(a) The company has provided unsecured loans to Opalforce Software India Limited.

(A) The Company has not provided any loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates.

(B) The balance outstanding at the balance sheet date is Rs. 2,00,00,000/- to Opalforce Software India Limited.

(b) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated and repayments or receipts
of principal amounts are not regular. According to the agreement between the company and Opalforce Software India
Limited, interest is required to be paid Quarterly.

(d) The Interest amount overdue for more than ninety days is Rs. Nil.

(e) No loan is granted or renewed or extended to settle the overdue of existing loans given to any company.

(f) The company has granted loans or advances to employees repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or 
period of repayment.

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect of the loans and investment made.

(v) In our opinion, the company has complied with the directives issued by the Reserve Bank Of India, the provisions of
the Act and the companies ( Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended) as applicable, with regard to the
deposits accepted. According to the information and explanation given to us, no order has been passed by the
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal, in
this regard.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed that no cost records are required to be maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148 of the Act.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales- tax, service tax, goods and service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues have been generally
regularly deposited during the year by the company with the appropriate authorities.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales- tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31st, 2025 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions recorded in the books of
account have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961, hence, clause (viii) of Order is not applicable.

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings to any Lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not declared willful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no Term Loans were obtained during the year under
report.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, no funds raised on short term basis have been utilized
for long-term purposes.

(e) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures
or associate companies; hence the clause (ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) (a) The company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instrument) during the year under report.

(b) The information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the
company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
have neither come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company noticed or reported during the year, nor have we
been informed of such case by the management.
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(b) No report under sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) We have not considered whistle-blower complaints since there is no compliant received during the year by the
Company.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a Nidhi
company. Therefore, clause (xii)(a)(b)(c) are not applicable.

(xiii) All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the companies act, 2013.
The details have been disclosed in the Financial Statement etc. as required by the Accounting Standard.

(xiv)
(a) As informed by the management the internal auditor has been appointed and Internal Audit Report will be

submitted by him to the Audit Committee hence, we are unable to Comment on the same.
(b) In framing our Independent Audit Reports, we have not considered the Internal Auditor's Report for the period

under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or person connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi) (a) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

(b) In Our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a
valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined under the Regulations by the Reserve Bank of
India.
(d) The Group does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the Financial Year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

(xix) According to the information and explanations provided to us, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, we are of
the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date.

(xx) The provisions related to Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable in the preceding financial year, hence,
clause (xx)(a)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xxi) There are no adverse remarks in the report of company included in the consolidated financial statements since the
wholly owned subsidiary is registered outside India and Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) is not applicable
to the wholly owned subsidiary.

For R. B. Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants
F. R. No. 109971W

Sd/-
CA Abhinav Sharma
M.No. 192590
Partner
UDIN: 25192590BMISWW2832

Place: Pune
Date: 29/05/2025
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(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MINDPOOL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (“the
Company”) as of March 31st, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,  2025, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For R. B. Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants
F. R. No. 109971W

Sd/-

CA Abhinav Sharma
M.No. 192590
Partner
UDIN: 25192590BMISWW2832Place: Pune

Date: 29/05/2025
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For R B Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 109971W

Sd/-
CA Abhinav Sharma
M.No. 192590
Partner
UDIN: 25192590BMISWW2832

Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

For Mindpool Technologies Limited

Sd/-
Poonam Sharma
Director
DIN : 03397469
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Uday Surpuriya
CFO
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Ritesh Sharma
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 02676486
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Binny Porwal
Company Secretary
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF BALANCE SHEET FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2025

(Amount in 000's) 
As on 31st March, 2024 (Rupees) As on 31st March, 2025 

(Rupees) Note No.Particulars

EQUITY AND LIABILITIESA

Shareholders’ funds1
42,375.00 42,375.00 1(a) Share capital 
86,718.40 87,524.62 2(b) Reserves and surplus

1,29,093.40 1,29,899.62 
Non-current liabilities2

--(a) Long-term borrowings
--(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
--(c) Long Term Provisions

4,732.79 3,869.40 3(d) Other Non Current Liabilities
4,732.79 3,869.40 

Current liabilities3
--(a) Short-term borrowings

8,129.30 31,230.43 4(b) Trade payables
24,904.41 11,326.38 5(c) Other current liabilities

419.79 411.38 6(d)Short Term Provision
33,453.50 42,968.19 

1,67,279.68 1,76,737.22 Total

ASSETSB
Non-current assets1
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible 
Assets

4,694.99 2,891.54 7(i) Property, Plant & Equipment
15.47 15.47 7(ii) Intangible Assets

4,710.46 2,907.00 

20,905.25 24,635.91 8(b) Other non-current assets
735.56 1,614.82 9(c) Deferred Tax assets (Net)

21,640.81 26,250.73 
Current assets2

--(a) Inventories
50,415.53 69,281.02 10(b) Trade receivables

4,910.44 3,436.18 11(c) Cash and cash equivalents
36,967.47 24,636.33 12(d) Short Term Loan & Advances
48,634.97 50,225.94 13(e) Other Current Assets

1,40,928.41 1,47,579.48 

1,67,279.68 1,76,737.22 Total

01 to 19Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements
20 to 28Significant Accounting Policies and Additional 

Information to Financial Statements
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For R B Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 109971W

Sd/-
CA Abhinav Sharma
M.No. 192590
Partner
UDIN: 25192590BMISWW2832

Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

For Mindpool Technologies Limited

Sd/-
Poonam Sharma
Director
DIN : 03397469
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Uday Surpuriya
CFO
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Ritesh Sharma
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 02676486
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Binny Porwal
Company Secretary
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF BALANCE SHEET FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2025

(Amount in 000's) 

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 (Rupees) 

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2025 (Rupees) Note No.Particulars

3,49,792.66 2,65,641.56 14Revenue from Operations1
3,329.00 2,529.10 15Other Income 

3,53,121.66 2,68,170.66 Total Income  

Expenses2
--Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
--Changes in inventories of Stock in Trade

4,207.57 1,803.48 16Depreciation
2,410.55 1,332.69 17Finance Cost

2,25,735.01 1,76,689.67 18Employees Benefit Expenses
1,18,299.57 87,661.31 19Other Expenses
3,50,652.70 2,67,487.15 Total expenses

2,468.96 683.51 V. Profit before exceptional and extraordinary 
items and tax (1-2)

3

Exceptional Items4

2,468.96 683.51 
Profit After exceptional and extraordinary items 
(3-4)

5

Tax expense: 4

1,107.18 756.54 Current Tax Provision

430.77 (879.26)Deferred Tax

1,792.55 806.22 Profit / (Loss) for the period (3 - 4)5

Earning per Equity Share6

0.42 0.19 Basic Earnings per share of Rs 10/- each

0.42 0.19 Diluted Earnings per share of Rs 10/- each

01 to 19Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements
20 to 28Significant Accounting Policies and Additional 

Information to Financial Statements
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024
(Amount in 000's) 

As on 31.03.2024As on 31.03.2025Particulars 
Sr. 
No.

CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES A)

2,468.96 683.51 Profit / (Loss) before tax 
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash provided by 
operating activities 

42,07.571,803.48 Depreciation 

2,410.551,332.69 Interest & Finance Cost 

-Loss on sale of Fixed Asset 

(3,329.00)(2,026.87)Interest Income 

5,758.081,792.81 Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 
-Adjusted for: 

Inventories 

8,323.37 (18,865.49)Trade Receivables 

(61.65)12,331.14 Short term loans and advances  

(4,790.58)(1,590.70)Other current assets 

643.20 23,101.13 Trade payables 

11,983.51(13,578.03)Other current liabilities 

(1,496.33)(8.41)Short term provisions 

20,359.60 3,182.45 Cash Generated From Operations 

1,107.18 756.54 Direct Tax Paid 

19,304.34 2,425.91Net cash flow from Operating Activities 

-CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES B)

(364.80)-Payment towards capital expenditure 

-(3,730.66)Investment in Flat

3,329.00 2,026.87 Interest Income 

2,964.20 (1,703.79)Net cash flow from Investing Activities 
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For R B Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 109971W

Sd/-
CA Abhinav Sharma
M.No. 192590
Partner
UDIN: 25192590BMISWW2832

Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

For Mindpool Technologies Limited

Sd/-
Poonam Sharma
Director
DIN : 03397469
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Uday Surpuriya
CFO
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Ritesh Sharma
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 02676486
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Binny Porwal
Company Secretary
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES C)

--Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings & Long Term Liabilities 

(18,848.60)Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings 

(863.38)Proceeds from Non-Current Liabilities

(2,410.55)(1,332.69)Interest & Financial Charges 

(21,259.15)(2,196.08)Net cash used in Financing Activities 

957.47(1,473.96)Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 

3,952.68 4,910.15 Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 

4,910.153,436.18 Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Notes: 
(i) The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Accounting Standard 3 
"Cash Flow  Statement", issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
(ii) Figures in bracket indicate outgo.
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
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For R B Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 109971W

Sd/-
CA Abhinav Sharma
M.No. 192590
Partner
UDIN: 25192590BMISWW2832

Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

For Mindpool Technologies Limited

Sd/-
Poonam Sharma
Director
DIN : 03397469
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Uday Surpuriya
CFO
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Ritesh Sharma
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 02676486
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Sd/-
Binny Porwal
Company Secretary
Place: Pune
Date: 29 May 2025

Standalone Segment Report As on 31st March, 2025

(Amount in 000's)

Year endYear endHalf YearHalf YearHalf Year

31-03-202431-03-202531-03-202430-09-202431-03-2025ParticularsSr. No.

Segment Revenue1
2,11,090.33 1,29,881.51 69,315.95 58,992.03 70,889.48 Segment – Staffing(a)

13,410.91 4,438.95 7,715.75 4,404.76 34.20 Segment – Digital(b)
89,990.51 1,24,623.80 44,766.38 49,174.72 75,449.08 Segment – Routing(c)
26,409.28 8,542.30 16,295.37 5,889.82 2,652.48 Segment – Offshore Development Center(d)

8,891.62 -1,845.00 17,166.91 -1,311.12 -533.89 Unallocated WIP(e)

3,49,792.66 2,65,641.56 1,55,260.37 1,17,150.21 1,48,491.35 Total

0.000.000.000.000.00Less: Inter Segment Revenue

349792.66265641.56155260.37117150.21148491.35Net sales/Income From Operations

Segment Results (Profit)(+)/ Loss (-) before tax 
and interest from Each segment)2

2,632.33 956.27 831.79 530.93 425.34 Segment – Staffing(a)

898.35 89.80 385.79 88.10 1.71 Segment – Digital(b)

1,575.98 788.27 671.50 555.92 232.35 Segment – Routing(c)

635.32 142.32 324.91 116.80 25.52 Segment – Offshore Development Center(d)
-2,131.38 ----Unallocated(e)

3,610.60 1,976.66 2,213.98 1,291.74 684.92 Total
Less: 

1,141.91 1,293.74 798.08 714.45 579.29 Interest(i)
Other Un-allocable Expenditure net off(ii)
Un-allocable income

2468.69682.921415.90577.29105.63Total Profit Before Tax

Capital Employed3
Segment – A(a)
Segment – B(b)

Segment – C(c)
ODC(d)

42,375.00 42,375.00 42,375.00 42,375.00 42,375.00 Unallocated(e)

42,375.00 42,375.00 42,375.00 42,375.00 42,375.00 Total
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Notes to Accounts

(Amount in 000's) 

Note No : 01 Share Capital
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars

Authorised

1,20,000.00 1,20,000.00 120,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 

(120,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) 

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up

42,375.00 42,375.00 42,37,500  Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 

(Previous Year - 4237500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid) 

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up during the year

42,375.00 42,375.00 42,37,500  Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 

(Previous Year - 4237500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid) 

42,375.00 42,375.00 Closing Balance  Equity Shares of Rs 10 each

Note No: 1a) Reconciliation of number of shares

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 Equity Shares

No. of Shares No. of Shares 

4,237.50 4,237.50 Balance at the beginning of the year 

--Add: Shares issued during the year 

--Add: Bonus Shares issued during the year 

4,237.50 4,237.50 Balance at the end of the year

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares:

The company has issued only one class of equity share having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share.

The company has only one class of share having par value of Rs 10. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.
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Notes to Accounts

Note No: 1b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% Shares in the Company Equity Shares with Voting Rights

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st 
March, 2025 

As at 31st 
March, 2025 Particulars

Holding % No of Shares (In Thousands) Holding %No of Shares 
(In Thousands)

35.52%1,505 35.52%1,505 Ritesh Sharma

35.52%1,505 35.52%1,505 Poonam Sharma

5.10%216 0.00%-Doshi Hetal S

0.00%-5.14%218 Shashank Doshi

76.13%3,226 76.18%3,228 Total

Note No: 1(c) The Shareholding of Promoter

% Change during the
year %of total shares

No of Shares (In 
Thousands) 

Particulars

-35.52%1,505 Ritesh Sharma

-35.52%1,505 Poonam Sharma

-71.03%3,010 Total

(d)Aggregate Number of Bonus shares issued, shares issued other than cash & shares bought back during the period of five years 
immediately preceding the reporting date.

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars 

(Nos) (Nos) 

--

Bonus Equity share of Rs. 10 each issued during the period of five years immediately 
preceding the reporting date
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Notes to Accounts

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 02 Reserves & Surplus
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars

A) Security Premium Account 
14,715.00 14,715.00 

Opening Balance 

Add: Premium on Fresh issue of shares 

Less: Public Issue Expenses 
14,715.00 14,715.00 

Closing Balance 

B) Profit & Loss Account

70,210.86 72,003.40 Opening Balance

1,792.55 806.22 Profit for the Year

72,003.40 72,809.62 
Closing Balance

86,718.40 87,524.62 Total 

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 03 Other Non Current Liabilities
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars

-
-Other Non Current Liabilities

4,732.79 
3,869.40 Gratuity payable

4,732.79 3,869.40 Total 

(Amount in 000's) 
Note No : 04 Trade Payable

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars

121.76 
2,473.30 

Payable for MSME

8,007.54 

28,757.12 

Other

8,129.30 31,230.42 
Total
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Notes to Accounts

(Amount in 000's) 

Note No : 05 Other Current Liabilities
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars

10,394.78 
6,672.76 Statutory Payable

-
42.00 Riverdale Flat Deposit

14,561.25 
3,351.58 

Other Payable

(51.63)
1,260.04 

Federal Cash Credit Accounts 18185500000301

24,904.40 11,326.38 
Total

(Amount in 000's) 
Note No : 06 Short Term Provisions

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 
Particulars

12.79 
6.38 ESIC Payable

2.00 
-Employee LWF payable

405.00 
405.00 Other short term provisions

419.79 411.38 
Total

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 08 Other Non-Current Assets
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars

Investment in Wholly Own Subsidiary Company 
0.75 0.75 Mindpool Technologies Inc USA 

Investment In Shares  
19,355.42 19,355.42 S A Tech Software Ltd 

-4,181.67 Investment In Flat 

1,549.08 1,098.08 FD With Federal Bank

20,905.25 24,635.91 Total

(Amount in 000's) 
Note No : 09 Deferred Tax Asset

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 
Particulars

735.56 
1,614.82 Defferred Tax Asset

735.56 1,614.82 
Total
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(Amount in 000's) 
Note No : 10 Trade Receivable 

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good 

34,452.33 42,199.64 
Debts outstanding for less than six months from the date due for payment

15,963.20 27,081.38 
Other Debts More than 6 Months

50,415.53 69,281.02 
Total

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 11 Cash & Cash Equivalents
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

--Cash in hand 

Bank Balances 

- In Current Accounts 

4,708.53 3,389.28 Federal Bank Current A/c 18180200003721 

--Federal Bank Escrow account 18180200003820 

143.11 -ICICI Bank  

58.79 46.90 RBL Bank (400021022011) 

4,910.44 3,436.18 Total

(Amount in 000's) Note No: 12 Short Term Loan and Advances
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars

36,939.47 24,608.33 Other Advances 

28.00 28.00 Deposits 

36,967.47 24,636.33 Total

(Amount in 000's) Note No: 13 Other Current Assets
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars

918.97 1,819.49 TDS Receivable

1,305.89 2,305.70 Prepaid Expenses

39,788.57 37,943.57 Unbillied Revenue

91.01 587.06 Interest Receivable 

6,530.53 7,570.13 Income Tax Refund Receivable

48,634.97 50,225.94 Total
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(Amount in 000's) 
Note No : 14 Revenue from Operations

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 
Particulars

Sale of Services 

39,664.20 12,981.25 Services - Export

3,10,128.47 2,52,660.31 Services- Domestic

3,49,792.66 2,65,641.56 
Total

(Amount in 000's) 
Note No: 15 Other Income

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 
Particulars

2,945.05 2,026.87 Interest Received

383.94 -Creditors written off

-210.00 Rent on Riverdale Flat

-292.23 Gratuity Income

3,329.00 2,529.10 Total

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 16 Depreciation & Amortised Cost

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars

4,207.57 1,803.48 Depreciation on Tangible Assets 

--Amortization on Intangible Assets 

4,207.57 1,803.48 Total

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 17 Finance Cost
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars

1,803.14 901.38 Interest on Bill Discounting

607.41 431.32 Other Finance Cost

2,410.55 1,332.69 Total
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(Amount in 000's) Note No : 18 Employee Benefit Expenses

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars

2,09,700.22 1,65,306.13 Salaries, Wages

5,855.69 4,391.77 Director Remuneration

1,386.24 516.31 Staff Welfare Expenses

1,665.66 1,204.38 Insurance for Employees

7,127.20 5,271.08 Contribution towards various Funds for Employees 

2,25,735.01 1,76,689.67 Total

(Amount in 000's) Note No : 19 Other Expenses
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars

31,856.24 56,429.57 Professional Fees

2,791.92 1,645.15 Recruitment Expenses

75,140.55 21,683.28 Contracting Expenses

224.64 -Insurance

350.00 350.00 Statutory audit fees

108.50 105.00 Secretarial Audit Fees

3,487.61 2,688.56 Rent

432.06 360.06 Advertising And Marketing

958.25 152.36 Compliance Expenses

778.83 2,432.68 Interest on Statutory Payment

1,526.06 1,062.32 Office Expense

644.92 752.33 Other Expense

1,18,299.57 87,661.31 Total 
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Notes to Accounts

07) Tangible Assets and Intangible Assets

Net BlockDepreciationGross Block

Particulars
As at As at Total upto

Depreciati
onUptoAs at 

Deletion
sAdditionsAs at 

31-Mar-
2431-Mar-2531-Mar-25during the 

Addition
s/Deleti

ons01-Apr-2431-Mar-25
during 

the
during 

the 01-Apr-24
yearyearyear

Tangible Asset

185.86 166.25 3,158.75 19.61 -3,139.14 3,325.00 --3,325.00 Car

-

--25.30 --25.30 25.30 --25.30 Printer

-

2,917.47 2,159.03 2,054.14 758.44 1,295.70 4,213.17 --4,213.17 Furniture

-

31.51 26.16 148.14 5.35 142.80 174.31 --174.31 Plant & Machinary

-

1,560.19 540.09 9,821.20 1,020.09 8,801.11 10,361.29 --10,361.29 Computer

-
Intangible Asset

15.47 15.47 293.87 293.87 309.33 --309.33 Computer Software

4,677.49 2,907.00 15,501.40 1,803.48 -13,697.91 18,408.40 --18,408.40 Total

8,553.23 4,710.46 13,697.91 4,181.02 26.55 9,490.34 18,408.40 -364.80 18,043.60 Previous Year

www.mindpooltech.com
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Useful Life (In years)Type of Asset

03Computer & Software

10Furniture & Fixtures

05Office Equipments

10Motor Cars –Non commercial

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note no. 20: Corporate Information

The company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra State, Pune vide Registration no.
L72900PN2011PLC138607 dated 21 February 2011 under the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the
Company is situated at 3rd & 4th, Sr. No. 133/1/316111 GK mall, near Konkane Chowk, Pimple Saudagar, Pune MH
411027 IN. The Company is mainly engaged in business of IT Staffing, software development and information
technology enabled services.

Note no. 21: Significant Accounting Policies:

A. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

These financial statements are prepared on historical cost basis (except for revaluation of certain fixed assets) in
accordance with applicable Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013
and on the accounting principles of a going concern. The Company follows the mercantile system of accounting and
recognizes income and expenditure on accrual basis except those with significant uncertainties.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule III to The Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of Services and the time
between the hiring of Technical personal for Execution of Software projects and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as three to four months for the purpose of current and
non-current classification of assets and liabilities. The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees.

B. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires Board of Directors to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosures of contingent
liabilities on the date of financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenses for that year. Actual
results could differ from these estimates. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the
period in which the results are known/ materialized.

C. Revenue Recognition:

i) Services:

Revenue is measured by the charges made to customers or clients for goods supplied and services rendered to them
and by the charges and rewards arising from the use of resources by them. Sales are net of sales returns, trade and
other discounts, sales taxes and excise duties.

i) Other Income:

Interest is recognized using the time-proportion method, based on rates implicit in the transaction.

D. Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

Depreciation on fixed asset is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on straight line method over the useful life
of assets as prescribed in Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The revised carrying amount of the fixed
assets identified as impaired, is amortized over the estimated residual life of the respective fixed asset. The Company
has used the following lives to provide for depreciation on its fixed assets.
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E. Transactions in Foreign Currency:

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate of exchange in force on the date of the transactions. Current
assets, current liabilities and borrowings denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate prevalent
at the date of the Balance Sheet. The resultant gain/loss are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss, except in
cases where they relate to the acquisition of fixed assets in which case, they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such
assets.

F. Government Grants and Subsidy:

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that (a) the company
will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (b) the grant/subsidy will be received. When the grant or subsidy
relates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an
asset, it is reduced from the cost of the asset. Grants which are given as equity support are disclosed as promoter
contribution under the head Capital Reserve.

G. Investments:

a) Investments, which are readily realizable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date
on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as
long-term investments.

b) Long-term investments are valued at cost less provision for diminution other than temporary, in the value of such
investments. Current investments are valued at lower of cost and fair value.

H. Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing cost attributable to the acquisition and construction of qualifying fixed assets are capitalized as part of the
cost of such asset up to the date when such asset is ready for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged to
the Profit & Loss Account.

I. Segment Reporting:

In the opinion of the management, the Company has identified and initiated segment reporting from the FY 2024-25
and accordingly the Segment Report for half year ended 30th September 2024 and half year and year ended 31st
March 2025 is presented hereby in accordance with AS-17.

J. Leases:

a) Finance Lease: -

Assets acquired under finance lease are capitalized and the corresponding lease liability is recognized at lower of the
fair value of the leased assets and the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease. Initial
costs directly attributable to lease are recognized with the asset under lease.

b) Operating Lease: -

Lease of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Lease payments/revenue under operating leases are recognized as an expense/income on accrual
basis in accordance with the respective lease agreements.

K. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in
ascertaining the company’s earnings per share are the net profit or loss for the period after deducting preference
dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the period.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted
for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of
equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

www.mindpooltech.com
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L. Income Tax:

Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting year in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognized for all the timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred
tax assets. Deferred tax assets are recognized and carry forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the Balance Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date, the group reassesses unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax 
and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same 
governing taxation laws. The Income Tax Expense for FY 24-25 is Rs. 756.54 thousand.

M. Impairment of Assets:

In accordance with AS 28 on ‘Impairment of Assets’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, where
there is an indication of impairment of the Company’s assets related to cash generating units, the carrying amounts of
such assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any impairment. The recoverable
amount of such assets is estimated as the higher of its net selling price and its value in use. An impairment loss is
recognized whenever the carrying amount of such assets exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is
recognized in the profit and loss account. If at the balance sheet date there is any indication that a previously assessed
impairment loss no longer exists, then such loss is reversed and the assets are restated to that effect.

N. Contingent Liabilities / Assets and Provisions

Contingent Liabilities in respect of show cause notices received are considered only when they are converted into
demands. Contingent Liabilities under various fiscal laws include those in respect of which the Company / Department
is in appeal. A provision is made based on a reliable estimate when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle an obligation. Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in notes to
financial statements. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Note no. 22: - Additional Information to the Financial Statements

22.01 Contingent liability as may arise on account of none/late compliance of certain fiscal statement – amount
unascertainable.

22.02 The amounts under the head short term borrowing, trade payables, trade receivables and loans and advances
including those adjusted during the year are subject to confirmation and reconciliation and consequent adjustment
thereof, if any.

22.03 Expenditure incurred on employees holding shares of the company, who were in respect of remuneration of
more than 2 Lakh p.m., if employed for part of the year or 24 Lakh p.a.-

- Mr. Ritesh Sharma: Rs. 2,927.84 /- Thousand

22.04 Remuneration to Directors:

i) Remuneration paid during the year:

-Mrs. Poonam Sharma: Rs. 1,463.92/- Thousand 
-Mr. Ritesh Sharma: Rs. 2,927.84 /- Thousand

ii) Remuneration paid during previous year:

-Mrs. Poonam Sharma: Rs. 29,27,844 
- Mr. Ritesh Sharma: Rs. 29,27,844
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22.07 Related Party Transactions:

Details of related parties:

Mindpool Technologies Inc Subsidiary Companyi

Mrs. Poonam Sharma

Mr. Ritesh Sharma 

Mr. Kaustubh Karve (Independent Director)

Mr. Sunil Jain (Independent Director)

Mr. Shailendrasingh Naiyyar (Independent Director)Directorsii

Mr. day SurpuriyaKMP’siii

Ms. Binny Porwal (CS)

Details of Related Party transaction during the year ended 31st March, 2025 and balance outstanding as at 31st March, 2025

For the year ended 31st

March, 2024
For the year ended 31st

March, 2025
Particulars

(Rupees in 000’s)(Rupees in 000’s)

Director Remuneration

2,927.841,463.92Mrs. Poonam Sharma 

2,927.842,927.84Mr. Ritesh Sharma 

--Loan Balance outstanding at the year end

Remuneration to Related Parties

854.25 1,158.39Sathish Kumar(CFO)

964.01 1015.67Uday Surpuriya (CFO)
827.97 320.64Sanskar Prabhakar(Company Secretary)
-574.42Binny Porwal (Company Secretary)

Subsidiary Company

6,857.26 0.85Trade Receivables

Note:

(i) No amount has been provided for as doubtful debt. Also no amount has been written off/back during the year.

(ii) Related parties are as identified by the Management and relied upon by the Auditors.

Note 23: Gratuity

Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure
@ 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The scheme is unfunded.

22.05 Appropriate Income Tax Provision made for Income tax liability during the year.

22.06 Disclosure required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. At
the year end, company has requested status as a Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises from all of their
suppliers but only few suppliers intimated to the company about its status as a Micro, Small & Medium
Enterprises or its registration under the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
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Rs.292.23/- have been adjusted with retained earnings, since in Previous year FY 2023-24, Company has charged off earlier year 
provision for gratuity in retained earnings, therefore reversal of such provision also adjusted with retained earnings during the FY 
2024-25.
.

31-Mar-2431-Mar-25Balance Sheet
(Rupees in 000’s)(Rupees in 000’s)

4,202.854,732.79Opening Defined Benefit Obligation
--Transfer in/(out) obligation

2,239.791,747.12Current service cost
300.11328.63Interest cost

-2,009.96-2,367.97Actuarial loss (gain)
--Past service cost
--Loss (gain) on curtailments
--Liabilities extinguished on settlements
--Liabilities assumed in an amalgamation in the nature of purchase
--Exchange differences on foreign plans                                           
--571.15Benefits paid                                                                    

4,732.793,869.40Closing Defined Benefit Obligation                                                  

31-Mar-2431-Mar-25
Principle actuarial assumptions

(Rupees)(Rupees)

7.20%6.61% p.aDiscount Rate

Not ApplicableNot ApplicableExpected Return on Plan Assets

10.00%10.00%Salary Growth Rate

20.00% p.a at younger 
ages reducing to 10.00% 

p.a at older ages

20.00% p.a at younger 
ages reducing to 10.00% 

p.a at older agesWithdrawal Rates

www.mindpooltech.com

31-Mar-2431-Mar-25Profit & Loss Account

(Rupees in 000’s)(Rupees in 000’s)

2,239.791,747.12Current service cost

300.11328.63Interest on obligation

--Expected return on plan assets

-2,009.96-2,367.97Net actuarial loss/(gain)

--Recognised Past Service Cost-Vested

--Recognised Past Service Cost-Unvested

--Loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement

529.93-292.23Total included in 'Employee Benefit Expense

--Expenses deducted from the fund                                                   

529.93-292.23Total Charge to P&L                                                          
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For and on behalf of the Board
For Mindpool Technologies Limited

Place: Pune
Date: 29/05/2025

Sd/-
Poonam Sharma
Director
DIN : 03397469

Sd/-
Ritesh Sharma
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 02676486

www.mindpooltech.com

Note 24: Balance confirmations

In respect of the balance confirmations sought for by the company from its debtors and creditors, very few parties
have responded to the request. As such, balances in the accounts of debtors, creditors, advances and deposits are
taken as appearing in the accounts.

Note 25: Information about Business Segments

The Company has identified and initiated segment reporting from the FY 2024-25 and accordingly the Segment 
Report for half year ended 30th September 2024 and half year and year ended 31st March 2025 is presented hereby 
in accordance with AS-17. 

Note 26: Previous year figures.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's
classification / disclosure.

Note 27: Rounding Off

As per the amendment notification for Schedule III dated 27th March 2021 it is now mandatory for every company to 
round-off the figures appearing in financial statements. Since the turnover of the company is less than 100 crores, the 
figures in financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand.

Note 28: Others:

As on March 31st, 2025, the Company has one Wholly-owned Subsidiary – Mindpool Technologies INC.
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Form No. MGT-11

Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: L72900PN2011PLC138607

Name of the Company: MINDPOOL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Registered Office: 3rd & 4th, Sr No 133/1/316111 GK Mall Near Konkane Chowk, Pimple Saudagar, Pune MH 411027

Name of the Member(s) :

Registered Address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/Client Id:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member(s) of ____ shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint

Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:

Signature: ____________ or failing him
Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:

Signature: ____________ or failing him

Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: ____________

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 15th Annual General Meeting of
the Company, to be held on the Tuesday, 30th September 2025 at 11:15 am at at Hotel Parc Estique Nagar Rd, next to
Phoenix Market City, Clover Park, Viman Nagar, Pune, Maharashtra 411014 and at any adjournment thereof in respect
of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Business to be Transacted
Resolution 

Number

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Adoption of Audited Standalone Financial Statements1.

Adoption of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements2.

To reappoint Mrs. Poonam Ritesh Sharma (DIN:03397469), who retires by rotation pursuant to section 152(6) of
the Companies Act 2013, at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers Herself for re-appointment.3.

Special Business

To approve the revision in Remuneration of Mr. Ritesh Sharma (DIN 02676486) Chairman and Managing 
Director of the Company.

4
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Signed this …… day of……… 2025

Signature of Shareholders

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note:

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly filled, stamped, signed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

The proxy need not be a member of the company.

Appointing a proxy does not prevent a members from attending the meeting in person if he / she so wishes.

The Proxy holder should bring his/her identity proof at the time of attending the meeting.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote on a poll instead of himself / herself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Proxies, in order to
be valid and effective, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights.

A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may
appoint a single person as proxy and such person cannot act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall—

(a) be in writing; and

(b) be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointer is a body corporate, be
under its seal or be signed by an officer or an attorney duly authorised by it.

Every member entitled to vote at a meeting of the company, or on any resolution to be moved thereat, shall be
entitled during the period beginning twenty-four hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting
and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, to inspect the proxies lodged, at any time during the business hours
of the company, provided not less than three days’ notice in writing of the intention so to inspect is given to the
company.

Revenue 
Stamp of 
Re. 1/-

www.mindpooltech.com
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Attendance Slip
Shareholders attending the Meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete the attendance slip and hand it
over at the entrance of the meeting hall.

I hereby record my presence at the FIFTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company at Hotel Parq Estique, at

11.15 a.m. on Tuesday, the 30th September, 2025. ............................................................................................................ (full

name of the Shareholder) Signature (in block capitals) folio No. ................................................................/DP ID

No.*.................................................................... & Client ID No.* .................................................................... * Applicable for

members holding shares in electronic form. ............................................................................................................

.................................................................. full name of Proxy Signature (in block capitals)

NOTE: Shareholder/Proxyholder desiring to attend the meeting should bring his copy of the Annual Report for

reference at the meeting.
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ROUTE MAP FOR AGM VENUE:
HOTEL PARC ESTIQUE 

NAGAR RD, NEXT TO PHOENIX MARKET CITY, CLOVER PARK, VIMAN NAGAR, PUNE, MAHARASHTRA 
411014
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THANK
YOU
We extend our deepest gratitude to our dedicated employees,
whose passion and hard work drove our success. Thank you to our
valued customers for your continued trust and to our partners and
investors for your unwavering support.

Your commitment has been the cornerstone of our achievements
this past year. We are excited to build on this momentum and look
forward to achieving even greater milestones together in the year
ahead.

+91 997 266 0966

www.mindpooltech.com 

info@mindpooltech.com

Contact Us
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